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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

AM/ 4716

To the Shareholders of
Jordan Ahli Bank
Amman - Jordan

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Jordan Ahli Bank and its subsidiaries
“the Bank” which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
December 31, 2016, and the consolidated statement of income and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying consclidated financial statements present fairly, in all
material respects, the consolidated financial position of the Bank as at December 31, 2016,
and its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Bank in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants together with the other ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Bank’s consolidated financial statements in
Jordan, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Deloitte.

Emphases of a Matter

Without qualifying our opinion above, and as stated in Note (47) to the consolidated
financial statements, some of the accompanying notes to the consolidated financial
statements for the year 2016 were adjusted based on the request of Central Bank of

Jordan and as mentioned in the above note.
Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that,

in our professional judgment, were maost

significant in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current year. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements
as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion

on these matters.

Key audit matters

| How our audit addressed the key auq_it_matters_-_

Facilities |

I
The provision for credit Cfacilities |
impairment is significant to the Bank's |
financial statements. Moreover, its
calculation requires making ;
| assumptions and management’s use of |
estimates for the drop in credit ratings
, and un-collectability due to some |
sectors’ deteriorating financial and |
economic  conditions, inadequate
| guarantees, and the suspension of
interest arising from default according
i to regulatory authorities’ instructions.
. Moreover, the net credit facilities
' granted by the Bank to customers
amounted to JD 1,447 million, which
represent 51% of total assets as of
December 31, 2016.

1. Adequacy of Credit
Impairment Provision

The nature and characteristics of credit |
facilities granted to customers do vary
from one sector to another, and from |
one country to another, due to the
Bank's geographical deployment.
Consequently, the calculation method
of the provision for credit facilities |
impairment varies due to diverse |
sectors and different risk assessments |
for those countries, as well as due to |
their legal and statutory requirements |
and the requirements of the Central |
Bank of Jordan.

Scope of Audit to Address Risks

The performed audit procedures included
understanding the nature of credit facilities
portfolios, examining the internal control system
adopted in granting and monitoring credit, and
evaluating the reasonableness of management'’s
estimates of the provision for credit facilities
impairment, collection procedures and follow- up,
as well as suspension of interest. Furthermore, we
reviewed and understood the Bank's policy for
calculating provisions. We also selected and
reviewed a sample of performing, watch-list, and
non-performing credit facilities at the Bank’s level
as a whole. In addition, we evaluated the factors
affecting the calculation of the provision for credit
facilities impairment such as evaluating available
guarantees and collaterals, customers’ financial
solvency, management’s estimates of expected
cash flows, and regulatory authorities’ statutory
requirements. We also discussed these factors
with executive management to verify the
adequacy of recorded provisions. Moreover, we
re-calculated the provisions to be taken for those
accounts and verified suspension of interest on
non-performing or defaulted accounts and the

Bank’s adherence to the regulatory authorities’ |

instructions, requirements and related
International  Accounting  Standards, and
assumptions used for the calculation of the
provision for credit facilities impairment.

We also evaluated the adequacy of disclosure
relating to credit facilities, provision for credit
facilities impairment, and risks set out in Note (8).

Member of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited
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Financial Assets not Listed in Active
Markets

The Bank holds non-current financial assets

within the financial assets portfolio through |
| their efficiency. In addition, audit procedures

the comprehensive income statement of 1D
16,708,382 as of December 31, 2016. These
assets should be stated at fair value in
accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standard (IFRS 9).

Fair value determination of financial assets
requires the Bank’s management to make
several judgments and assessments and to
rely on non-listed prices input. Consequently,
management’s fair value estimation of these
assets was significant to our audit.

Scope of Audit to Address Risks

Audit procedures included evaluating internal |
procedures relating to the determination of
financial assets fair value and examination of

include evaluating the estimates adopted by
the Bank's management to determine the fair
value of non-current financial assets,
Moreover, these estimates have been |
compared to the requirements of International
Financial Reporting Standards and discussed in
light of available information.

The audit procedures also included evaluating
the adopted methodology, appropriateness of
evaluation models, and input used to
determine the fair value of financial assets.
They included as well reviewing the
reasonableness of the most significant input in
the evaluation process through reviewing
investee companies’ financial statements or
obtaining secondary market prices as well as
other reviewed inputs.

Assets Foreclosed by the Bank against
Debts

Assets seized by the Bank are shown at
acquisition value or fair value, whichever is
lower. As of the consolidated statement of
financial position date, these assets are
revalued individually at fair value based on

approved bases and methods according to the i

requirements of the International Financial

Reporting Standards. Moreover, any related |

impairment in their value is recorded based
on recent real estate evaluations and
approved by certified real estate appraisers.
A gradual provision has been calculated on
the foreclosed assets whose seizure exceeded
4 years according to the Instructions of the
Regulatory Authorities.

Scope of Audit to Address Risks

A revaluation of the foreclosed assets is
required by the Bank at least once every two
years to determine their fair value and to
reflect the effect of their impairment (if any) in
the income  statement according to
International Financial Reporting Standards.
Moreover, our audit procedures included
obtaining experts assistance to help us verify
the fair value of the foreclosed assets and |
review the reports of the real estate appraisers
hired by the management to evaluate these
properties. Also, a gradual provision has been
recalculated on the foreclosed assets whose
seizure exceeds 4 years according to the
regulatory authorities’ instructions regarding
this matter.
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4. The Information Technology System

on the Banking System

During the year 2016, the old banking
system has been replaced with a newly
developed one. Moreover, the Bank has
migrated the data from the old system to
the new one after September 2016 works
have been closed. A reconciliation of the
raw data has been carried out after the
data has been transferred toc the new
system. The Bank has also performed

Scope of Audit to Address Risks

A study and evaluation has been made for the
design and operating effectiveness of the new
banking system related to Internal control over
the financial reporting adopted by the Bank.
Moreover, we have examined the internal controls
related to the auditing purposes. We also
reviewed the outcome of the data migration
report issued by the bank management from the
old banking system to the new one,

another reconciliation after the first close
of business day. Furthermore, the required
amendments have been made on the new
banking systemn to adjust the differences
according to the priorities determined by
the Management.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
other information in the annual report excluding the consolidated financial statements and
the independent auditor’s report thereon, which is expected to be made available to us
after the date of our audit report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information,
and we do not express any form of assurance or conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is
to read the other information and, in so doing, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements, or our knowledge
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements in accordance with IFRS, and for such internal control as management
determines necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for
assessing the Bank's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Bank or cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Bank's financial
reporting process.

Member of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited
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Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISA’s, we exercise professional judgement and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consclidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a materiali misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than the one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omission, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the internal control.

> Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

> Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting, and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Bank's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosure are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Bank to cease to continue as a going concern.

> Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

g Obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information
of the entities or business activities within the Bank to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements, We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,

the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Member of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement on our compliance with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and communicate with them about
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards procedures.

From matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current years, and are therefore, the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor's report unless law and regulations preclude public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
The Bank maintains proper accounting records duly organized and in line with the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Other Matters

The accompanying financial statements are a translation of the statutory financial
statements which are in the Arabic language and to which reference should be made.
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mman - Jordan
February 28, 2017 (except for Note (47) on April 12, 2017)

Deloitte & Touche (M.E.}

Public Accountants
Amman - Jordan
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(A PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING LIMITED COMPANY)
AMMAN - JORDAN
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSTTION
December 31,
Note _ 2016 2015
ASSETS D o
Cash and balances at central banks 4 201,989,051 287,831,587
Balances at banks and financlal institutions 5 185,788,643 151,996,498
Deposits at banks and financial institutions [ 10,037,793 14,647,510
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 7 968,373 465,972
Direct credit facilities - net 8 1,447,236,602 1,227,323,101
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income g 29,011,930 27,841,330
Flnancial assets at amortized cost 10 754,809,955 601,857,948
Investments in associates and unconsolidated subsidiary company 11 5,106,980 5,219,798
Praperties, equipment, and projects under construction- net 12 46,831,590 59,745,149
Intangible assets - net 13 21,141,035 1,428,562
Cther assets 14 106,377,371 110,133,567
Deferred tax assets 20 6,219,227 6,137,976
TOTAL ASSETS 2,815,518,550 2!494!628E998
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
LIABILITIES:
Banks and financial institutions deposits 15 57,353,655 30,631,530
Customers deposits 16 2,067,294,759 1,782,222,725
Cash margins 17 255,883,131 279,197,317
Borrowed funds 18 88,520,033 45,564,564
Various provisions 19 3,392,889 3,663,206
Proviston for income tax 20 926,721 7,557,618
Deferred tax liabilities 20 1,002,584 1,058,399
Other liabilities 21 38,479,374 31,214,853
TOTAL LIABILITIES 2,512 853,146 2,181,110,212
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY:
Subscribed and paid-up capital 22 175,000,000 175,000,000
Statutory reserve 23 52,015,203 51,197,108
Voluntary reserve 23 33,486,083 33,486,083
Periodic fluctuations reserve 23 2,394,566 2,080,497
Special reserve 213,054 213,054
General banking risk reserve 23 14,988,716 11,693,374
Fair value reserve - net 24 1,861,943 1,203,412
Retained earnings 25 22,705,839 38,645,258
TFotal Shareholders' Equity 302,665,404 313,518,786

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

2,815,518,550

2,494,628,998

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES FROM (1) TO (47) CONSTITUTE AN INTEGRAL PART OF
THESE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SHOULD BE READ WITH THEM
AND WITH THE ACCOMPANYING AUDIT REPORT.

CHAIRMAN OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER



Interest income
Interest expense
Net Interest Revenue
Commisslons revenue - net
Net Interest and Commissions Revenue
Foreign exchange income

Income (tess) from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Dividends from financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

Other revenue
Total Non-Interest and Non-Commissions Revenue

Gross Income

Expenses:
Employees expenses
Depreciation and amortization
Other expenses
Provision for Impairment in direct credit facillties
Foreclosed assets Impairment provision
Total Expenses
Income from operations
Bank's share of associate companles (losses) gains
Income for the Year before Taxes
Income tax
Income for the Year

Attributable to;

Bank's shareholders

Earnings per share
attrlbutable to the Bank's shareholders :
Basic and Diluted

For the Year Ended
December 31,

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES FROM (1) TO (47) CONSTITUTE AN INTEGRAL PART OF
THESE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SHOULD BE READ WITH THEM.

AND WITH THE ACCOMPANYING AUDIT REPORT,

Note 2016 2015
o n
26 139,234,932 130,915,392
27 53,566,118 45,332,169
85,668,814 85,583,223
28 21,332,904 20,328,775
107,001,718 105,911,998
29 3,313,517 3,316,790
30 (61,783) 118,374
763,627 967,280
31 5,231,816 9,458,744
5,247,177 13,861,188
116,248,895 119,773,186
32 43,185,981 39,672,359
12,13 8,809,010 7,800,586
33 28,534,590 26,259,092
8 24,031,418 7,299,465
14 3,393,389 6,311,219
108,054,388 87,342,721
8,194,507 32,430,465
11 (13,559} 63,675
8,180,948 32,494,140
20 {1,906,015) (9,661,416)
6,274,933 22,832,724
6,274,933 22 832,724
6,274,933 22,832,724
34 0.036 0.130
CHIEF EXECUTIVE QFFICER



AN I8
A PUBLIC SHAREH LIMITED COMPAN

AMMAN - JORDAN

NSQLIDAT TATEM THER MPREHENSIVE INCOM
For the Year
Ended December 31,
2016 2015
D D
Income for the year 6,274,933 22,832,724
Other Comprehensive Income Items:
Items not to be Subsequently Transferred to the Consolidated Statement of Income;
(Loss) from sale of financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (286,846) (7.151)
Change in fair value reserve - net 658,531 {629,608)
Gross Comprehensive Income 65646!618 22!1955965
Gross Comprehensive Income Attributable to:
Bank's shareholders 6,646,618 22,195,965

6,646,618 22!195‘965

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES FROM (1) TO (47) CONSTITUTE AN INTEGRAL
PART OF THESE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SHOULD BE
READ WITH THEM AND WITH THE ACCOMPANYING AUDIT REPORT.
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CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Income for the year before taxes
Adjustments:
Depreciation and amortization
Provision for Impalrment in direct credit facllities
Varlous provisions
Foreclosed assets (mpairment peovision
Provision for doubtful debts of sold foredosed assats
Loss (gain) from revaluation of financlal assets at fair value through profit or loss
{Gain) on the sale of propertles and equipment
Bank's share of assoclate companies (gains)
Decrease tn varlous provisions
Net interest
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cash equivalents
Net Income before Changes in Assets and Liabllities
Changes in Assets and Llabllities:
{Increase) In cash and balances at central banks due after 3 months
Deacrease {Increase) in deposits at banks and financlal institutions due after 3 months
(Increase} decrease in balances with restricted withdrawal
{Increase} decrease in financial assets at fair value through proflt or loss
(Increase) in direct credit facilities - net
Decrease In other assets
{Decrease) in banks and financial Institutions deposits due after 3 months
Increase in customers' deposits
{Decrease) in cash margins
Increase {decrease) In other liabilities
Net Changes in Assets and Liabllities
Net Cash Flows generated from Operating Activities before Income Tax and provisions pald
Income tax paid
End-of-service indemnity paid and other
Net Cash Flows generated from Operating Activitles

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Decrease In investment in associate
{Increase) In financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
(Increase) In flnancial assets at armortized cost
(Purchase) of properties and equipment, projects under construction, and Intanglble assets
Proceeds from sale of properties and equipment
Net Cash Flows {used In} Investing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Increase In borrowed funds

Dividends paid te shareholders
Net Cash Flows from {used in) Financing Actlvities

Effect of exchange rate fluctuvations on cash and cash equivalents
Net {Decrease) Increase in Cash and Cash Equlvalents

Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of the year
Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of the Year

For the Year Ended
December 31,

Note 2016 20135
o bl
8,180,948 32,494,140
12,13 8,509,010 7,800,586
8 24,031,418 7,299,465
19 836,558 518,115
14 2,603,231 1,736,427
14 790,158 4,574,792
30 36,231 (112,181)
(657,020) (4,142,825)
1 13,559 (63,675)
19 (959,164) 3
(3,682,554) (1,413,684}
29 {2,345,473) (2,600,846}
37,756,902 46,090,314
(779,900} {7,497,425)
4,609,717 (14,647,510)
{31,265} 10,000,000
(538,632) 35,464
(243,944,919} (33,627,651)
9,877,430 402,917
- (1,312,540)
285,072,034 259,117,911
(23,314,186) (2,580,477)
1,781,593 (6,382,623)
32,731,872 203,508,056
70,488,774 249,598,370
20 (9,028,571) (13,047,955)

19 (147,711)

61,312,492

(1,140,333)

235,410,082

99,259 4,218,519
(854,731) (1,225,642)
(152,952,007) (207,400,406}
12,13 (16,216,565}  {13,977,044)
1,165,661 9,315,432

{168,758,383)

(209,069,141}

42,955,469 10,980,599
{17,438,732) (17,301,511}
25,516,737 (6,320,912}

29 2,345,473 2,600,846

(79,583,681) 22,620,875

401,578,930 378,958,055

35 321,895,249 401,576,930

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES FROM (1) TO (47) CONSTITUTE AN INTEGRAL PART OF
THESE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SHOULD BE READ WITH THEM

AND WITH THE ACCOMPANYING AUDIT REPORT.
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JORDAN AHLI BANK
(A PUBLIC SHAREHQLDING LIMITED COMPANY)
AMMAN - JORDAN
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. General

- Jordan Ahli Bank was established in the year 1955 as a Public Shareholding
Limited Company under ID No. (6) on July 1, 1955 in accordance with the
Companies Law for the year 1927, with headquarters in Amman. Its address
is Queen Noor Street, P.O. Box 3103, Amman 11181 Jordan. The Business
Bank was merged into the Bank effective from December 1, 1996. Moreover,

Philadelphia Investment Bank was merged into Jordan Ahli Bank Company
PSC effective from July 1, 2005.

- The Bank provides all banking and financial services related to its business
through its main office, branches in Jordan (55 branches), external branches
(6 branches} and subsidiary companies in Jordan.

- The Bank’s shares are listed in Amman Stock Exchange - Jordan.
- The consolidated financial statements have been approved by the Bank's

Board of Directors in its meeting No. (3) held on February 23, 2017, and are
subject to the approval of the General Assembly of Shareholders.

Basis of Preparation

- The accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Bank and its
subsidiary companies are prepared in accordance with the standards issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB), the interpretations
issued by the International Financial Reporting Interpretation Committee of
the IASB, the prevailing rules of the countries where the Bank operates, and
the instructions of the Central Bank of Jordan.

- The consolidated financial statements are prepared under the historical cost
convention except for financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income which are
stated at fair value as of the date of the consolidated financial statements.
Furthermore, hedged financial assets and financial liabilities are also stated at
fair value.

- The reporting currency of the consolidated financial statements is the
Jordanian Dinar, which is the functional currency of the Bank.

- The accounting policies adopted, when preparing the consolidated financial
statements, are consistent with those applied in the year ended December 31,
2015, except for what is stated in note (46.a).

- Basis of Consolidation and Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Bank’s branches in Jordan and abroad and the following
subsidiary companies under its control. Moreover, control is achieved when
the Bank has the ablility to control the financial and operating policies of the
subsidiary companies to obtain benefits from their activities. Additionally,
transactions, balances, revenues, and expenses between the Bank and its
subsidiaries are eliminated. Transactions in transit are also shown under
“other assets” or “other liabilities” in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

The Bank's subsidiary companies as of December 31, 2016 are as follows:
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A. _ Ahli Micro Finance Company
Ahli Micro Finance Company is wholly owned by the Jordan Ahli Bank. The

Company’s objective is to grant loans to limited income individuals. Its
paid-up capital amounted to JD 6 million, total assets to JD 20,310,914,
and total liabilities to JD 9,873,322 as of December 31, 2016. Its total
revenue amounted to JD 6,599,469, and total expenses to 1D 5,854,206 for
the year ended December 31, 2016, before excluding any transactions,
balances, revenue, and expenses between the Company and the Bank.

B.  Ahli Financial Brokerage Company
Ahli Financial Brokerage Company is wholly owned by Jordan Ahli Bank with
a capital of JD 5 million. Its total assets amounted to JD 6,184,699, and
total liabilities to JD 745,049, as of December 31, 2016. Moreover, its
revenue amounted to JD 290,999, and its expenses to JD 533,608 for the
year ended December 31, 2016, before excluding any transactions,
balances, revenue, and expenses between the Company and the Bank.

C. __Ahli Financial Leasing Company
Ahli Financial Leasing Company is wholly owned by Jordan Ahli Bank and its

capital is JD 17.5 million. Its total assets amounted to JD 83,214,044, and
total liabilities to JD 53,363,081 as of December 31, 2016. Moreover, its
total revenue amounted to JD 4,851,364, and its total expenses to JD
1,711,078 for the year ended December 31, 2016, before excluding any
transactions, balances, revenue, and expenses between the Company and
the Bank.

The financial statements of the subsidiary companies are prepared for the
same financial year, using the same accounting policies adopted by the
Bank. If the accounting policies adopted by the companies are different from
those used by the Bank, the necessary adjustments to the financial
statements of the subsidiary companies are made to comply with the
accounting policies followed by the Bank,

- The results of the subsidiaries are incorporated into the consolidated
statement of income from the effective date of acquisition, which is the date
on which actual control over the subsidiaries is assumed by the Bank.
Moreover, the operating results of the disposed subsidiaries are incorporated
into the consolidated statement of income up to the effective date of
disposal, which is the date on which the Bank loses control over the
subsidiaries,

Non - controlling interests represent the portion of owners’ equity not
owned by the Bank in the subsidiaries.

In case separate financial statements are prepared for the Bank as a stand-
alone entity, investments in the subsidiary companies are shown in
accordance with the equity method.

Sectors Information

- The business sector represents a group of assets and operations that share
in providing products or services subject to risks and rewards different from
those of other business sectors, and is measured according to the reports
used by the executive manager and the Bank's main decision maker.

- The geographic sector relates to the provision of products or services in a
specific economic environment subject to risks and rewards different from
those of sectors operating in other economic environments.
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Direct Credit Facilities

The provision for the impairment of direct credit facilities is recognized
when it is obvious that the amounts due to the Bank cannot be recovered,
or when there is an objective evidence of the existence of an event
negatively affecting the future cash flows of the direct credit facilities, and
the impairment amount can be estimated. The provision is taken to the
consolidated statement of income.

Interest and commission on non-performing credit facilities granted to
customers are suspended in accordance with the instructions of the Central
Bank of Jordan and applicable laws in the countries where the Bank's
branches or subsidiaries operate.

Impaired credit facilities, for which specific provisions have been taken, are
written off by charging the provision after all efforts have been made to
recover the assets. Any surplus in the provision is taken to the consolidated
statement of income, while debt recoveries are taken to income.

Financial Assets Measured at Amortiz t

Financial assets measured at amortized cost are the financial assets which
the Bank's management intends to hold according to its business model to
collect the contractual cash flows which comprise the contractual cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding.

Financial assets measured at amortized cost are recorded at cost upon
purchase plus acquisition expenses. Moreover, the issue premium /
discount is amortized, using the effective interest rate method, and
recorded to interest. Any allocations resulting from the decline in value of
these investments leading to the inability to recover the asset or part
thereof are recorded, and any impairment is recorded in the consolidated
statement of income.

Impairment in financial assets represent the difference between the book
value recorded at amortized cost and the present value of the expected
cash flows discounted at the market interest rate.

It is not allowed to reclassify any financial assets to or from this item except
for the cases specified in International Financial Reporting Standards (in
case any of these assets were sold before maturity date, the resuit of this
sale is recorded in the consolidated statement of income in a separate line
item along with its explanation according to the IFRS requirements
regarding this issue}.

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss represent shares, bonds
and debentures held by the company for the purpose of trading and
achieving gains from the fluctuations in market prices in the short term.

Financial assets at fair value through the statement of income are initially
stated at fair value at the acquisition date (purchase costs are recorded in
the statement of income upon purchase). They are subsequently re-
measured to fair value. Moreover, changes in fair value are recorded in the
consolidated statement of income, including the change in fair value
resulting from foreign currency exchange translation of non-monetary
assets. Gains or losses resulting from the sale of these financial assets are
taken to the consolidated statement of income.
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it is not aillowed to reclassify any financial assets to/from this item except for
the cases specified in International Financial Reporting Standards.

It is not allowed to reclassify any financial assets that do not have prices in
active markets and active dealings in this item.

Dividends and interests from these financial assets are recorded in the
consolidated statement of income.,

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income

These assets represent investments in equity instruments for the purpose of
keeping them to generate profits in the long term and not for trading
purposes.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income are initially
stated at fair value, in addition to acquisition costs, upon purchase. They are
subsequently re-measured to fair value, and the change in fair value is
included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income and in
shareholders’ equity, including the change in the fair value resulting from
foreign currency exchange translation of non-monetary assets. Gains or losses
resulting from the sale of these financial assets are taken to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income and shareholders’ equity. Moreover, the
fair value reserve balance that relates to the equity instruments sold is
transferred directly to retained earnings and not through the consolidated
statement of income.

There is no impairment testing on these assets.

Dividends from these financial assets are recorded in the consolidated
statement of income.

Fair Value
The fair value of a listed financial asset is based on its closing market price

prevailing on the date of the consolidated financial statements.

For an unlisted financial asset with no quoted market price, no active trading for
some financial assets or derivatives, or no active market, its fair value is
estimated by one of the following ways:

Comparing it to another financial asset with similar terms and conditions.

Analyzing future cash flows and using the discounted cash flow technique
through adopting a discount rate used in a similar instrument.

Adopting options pricing models.

Long-term non-interest bearing financial assets and financial liabilities are
valued according to the discounted cash flows and the effective interest rate
method. The discount interest is taken to interest income within the
consolidated statement of income.

The wvaluation methods aim to obtain a fair value reflecting market
expectations, taking into consideration market factors and any expected risks
and benefits upon estimating the value of the financial assets. Moreover,
financial assets the fair value of which cannot be reliably measured are stated
at cost, net of any impairment in their value.
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Impairment in the Value of Financial Assets
The Bank reviews the values of financial assets on the date of the consolidated

statement of financial position in order to determine if there are any indications of
impairment in their value individually or as a portfolio. In case such indications
exist, the recoverable value is estimated so as to determine the impairment loss.

The impairment is determined as follows:

- The impairment in financial assets measured at amortized cost is the
difference between the book value and present value of the future cash
flows discounted at the original interest rate

- The impairment in financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
recorded at fair value, represents the difference between the book value and
fair value.

- The impairment in the financial assets recorded at cost is the difference
between the book value and the present value of the expected cash flows
discounted at the market interest rate of similar instruments.

The impairment in value is recorded in the consolidated statement of income. Any
surplus in the subsequent period resulting from previous declines in the fair value
of financial assets is taken to the consolidated statement of income except for the
impairment of financial assets at fair value through the statement of
comprehensive income, in which case the impairment is recovered through the
fair value reserve.

Investment in Associates and Unconsolidated Subsidiary Company

- Associated companies are those companies whereby the Bank exercises
significant influence over their financial and operating policies, but do not
control them, and whereby the Bank owns between 20% to 50% of voting
rights. Investments in associates are stated according to the equity method
in the consolidated financial statements.

- Investment in Ahluna for Cultural and Social Work Company is shown at cost
as it is a not-for-profit company. Its net income is used for social and
charitable work and the entire net revenue is donated. The General
Assembly resolved, in its extraordinary meeting held on October 8, 2015 to
voluntarily liquidate the Company and appoint a liquidator.

- In case separate financial statements are prepared for the Bank as an
independent entity, investments in the subsidiaries are shown according to
the equity method.

Properties and Equipment

- Properties and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated
depreciation and any impairment in their values. Properties and equipment
(except for land) are depreciated, when ready for use, according to the
straight-line method, over their estimated useful lives, using the following
annual rates:

%
Buildings 2
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 10 - 20
Vehicles 15
Computers 20 -30
Other 15 - 20
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- When the carrying amounts of properties and equipment exceed their
recoverable values, assets are written down, and impairment losses are
recorded in the consolidated statement of income.

- The useful lives of properties and equipment are reviewed at the end of each
year. In case the expected useful iife is different from what was determined
previously, the change in estimate is recorded in the following years, being
a change in estimate.

S Properties and equipment are derecognized upon their disposal or when
there are no expected future benefits from their use or disposal.

Provisions
Provisions are booked when the Bank has an obligation on the date of the
consolidated statement of financial position as a resuit of past events, it is
probable to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount of the
obligation can he made,

- A provision for legal and contractual commitments relating to employees’
end-of-service indemnities is taken according to the Bank's internal
regulations on the consolidated statements of financial position date.

S Payments to resigned employees are deducted from the provision amount,
Moreover, the required provision for end-of-service indemnities for the year
is charged to the consolidated statement of income.

Income Tax
- Income tax expenses represent accrued taxes and deferred taxes.

- Income tax expenses are accounted for on the basis of taxable income.
Moreover, taxable income differs from income declared in the consolidated
financial statements because the latter includes non-taxable revenue or tax
expenses not deductible in the current year but deductible in subsequent
years, accumulated losses acceptable by the tax authorities, and items not
allowable for tax purposes or subject to tax.

- Taxes are calculated on the basis of the tax rates prescribed according to
the prevailing laws, regulations, and instructions of the countries where the
Bank operates.

Deferred taxes are taxes expected to be paid or recovered as a result of
temporary timing differences between the value of the assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the value of the taxable
amount. Deferred tax is calculated, on the basis of the liability method in
the consolidated statement of financial position, and the deferred taxes are
calculate according to the rates expected to be applied when the tax liability
is settled or tax assets are recognized.

- Deferred tax assets and liabilities are reviewed as of the date of the
consolidated statement of financial position, and reduced in case it is
expected that no benefit will arise therefrom, partially or totally.

Capital
Costs of Issuing or Purchasing the Bank's Shares:
Costs of issuing or purchasing the Bank's shares are recorded in retained
earnings, net of any tax effect of these costs. If the issuing or purchase process
has not been completed, these costs are recorded as expenses in the
consolidated statement of income.
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Accounts Managed on Behalf of Customers

These represent the accounts managed by the Bank on behalf of its customers,
but do not represent part of the Bank's assets. The fees and commissions on
managing these accounts are taken to the consolidated statement of income,
Moreover, a provision is taken for the decline in the value of capital-guaranteed
portfolios managed on behalf of its customers.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financiai liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reflected
in the consolidated statement of financial position only when there are legal rights
to offset the recognized amounts, the Bank intends to settle them on a net basis,
or assets are realized and liabilities are settled simultaneously.

Realization of Income and Recognition of Expenses

- Income is realized and expenses are recognized on an accrual basis, except
for interest and commission on non-performing credit facilities, which are
not recognized as revenue but taken to the interest and commission in
suspense account.

- Commission is recorded as revenue when the related services are provided.
Moreover, dividends are recorded when realized (approved by the General
Assembly).

Recognition of Financial Assets
Financial assets are recognized on the trade date (the date on which the Bank
commits itself to purchase or sell the financial assets).

Financial Derivatives and Hedge Accounting
Hedged Financial Assets

For hedge accounting purposes, the financial derivatives are stated at fair value.
Hedges are classified as follows:

- Fair value hedge: hedge for the change in the fair value exposures of the
Bank's assets and liabllities.

When the conditions of effective fair value hedge are met, the resulting gain
or loss from re-measuring the fair value hedge as well as change in the fair
value of hedged assets and liabilities is recognized in the consolidated
statement of income.

When the conditions of effective portfolio hedge are met, the gain or loss
resulting from the revaluation of the hedging instrument at fair value as well
as the change in the fair value of the assets or liabilities portfolio are
recorded in the consolidated statement of income for the same period.

-  Cash flow hedge: hedge for the change in the current and expected cash
flows’ exposures of the Bank's assets and liabilities.

When the conditions of effective cash flow hedge are met, the gain or loss of
the hedging instruments is recognized in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income and shareholders’ equity. Such gain or loss is
transferred to the consolidated statement of income in the period in which
the hedge transaction impacts the consolidated statement of income.
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- Hedge for net investments in foreign entities:

When the conditions of the hedge for net investment in foreign entities are
met, fair value is measured for the hedging instrument of the hedged net
assets. In case of an effective relationship, the effective portion of the loss
or profit related to the hedging instrument is recognized in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income and shareholders’ equity. On the other
hand, the ineffective portion is recognized in the consolidated statement of
income. The effective portion is recorded in the consolidated statement of
income when the investment in foreign entities is sold.

- When the conditions of the effective hedge do not apply, gain or loss
resulting from the change in the fair value of the hedging instrument is
recorded in the consolidated statement of income in the same period.

Financial Derivatives for Trading

The fair value of financial derivatives for trading (such as forward foreign
currency contracts, future interest rate contracts, swap agreements and foreign
currency options) is recorded in the consolidated statement of financial position.
Fair value is measured according to the prevailing market prices, and if not
available, the measurement method should be disclosed. The change in fair value
is recognized in the consolidated statement of income.

Repurchase and Resale Agqreements

- Assets sold with a simultaneous commitment to repurchase them at a future
date continue to be recognized in the consolidated financial statements as a
result of the Bank's continuous control over these assets and as the related
risk and benefits are transferred to the Bank upon occurrence. They also
continue to be measured in accordance with the adopted accounting policies.
Amounts received against these contracts are recorded within liabilities
under borrowed funds. The difference between the sale price and the
repurchase price is recognized as an interest expense amortized over the
contract period using the effective interest rate method.

- Purchased assets with corresponding commitment to sell at a specific future
date are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements because the
Bank has no control over such assets, and the related risks and benefits are
not transferred to the Bank upon occurrence. Payments related to these
contracts are recorded under deposits with banks and other financial
institutions or loans and advances in accordance with the nature of each
case. The difference between the purchase price and resale price is recorded
as interest revenue, amortized over the life of the contract, using the
effective interest rate method.

Foreclosed Assets

Assets that have been subject to foreclosure by the Bank are shown under "other
assets” in the consolidated statement of financial position at the acquisition value
or fair value, whichever is lower. As of the consolidated statement of financial
position date, these assets are revalued individually at fair value. Any decline in
their market value is taken as a loss to the consolidated statement of income,
whereas any such increase is not recognized. Subsequent increase is taken to the
consolidated statement of income to the extent it does not exceed the previously
recorded impairment.

The impairment in value of foreclosed assets is recorded based on recent and
reliable assessments conducted by certified estimators for the purpose of
impairment calculation, and such impairments are reviewed periodically. Since
the beginning of the year 2015, a gradual provision has been taken for foreclosed
assets against debts owned for more than 4 years. According to the Central Bank
of Jordan's Circular issued February 14, 2017, regarding the provision for the
assets foreclosed against debts, a minimum of 10% is deducted as provision for
violated foreclosed assets as of the end of the year 2016. Moreover, a provision
of 10% is to be taken until it reaches 50% of the amount of these properties.
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Intangible Assets
A- Goodwill

- Goodwill is recorded at cost, and represents the excess amount paid to
acquire or purchase the investment in an associate or a subsidiary on the
date of the transaction over the fair value of the net assets of the associate
or subsidiary at the acquisition date. Goodwill resulting from the investment
in a subsidiary is recorded as a separate item as part of intangible assets,
while goodwill resulting from the investment in an associated company
constitutes part of the investment in that company. The cost of goodwill is
subsequently reduced by any decline in the value of the investment.

- Goodwill is distributed over the cash-generating units for the purpose of
testing the impairment in its value.

- The value of goodwill is tested on the date of the consolidated financial
statements and reduced when there is evidence that it has declined or the
recoverable value of the cash-generating units is less than their book value.
The decline in value is recorded in the consolidated statement of income as
impairment loss.

B- Other Intangible Assets

- Other intangible assets acquired through merging are stated at fair value at
the date of acquisition, while other intangible assets purchased otherwise
are recorded at cost.

- Intangible assets are to be classified on the basis of either definite or
indefinite useful life. Intangible assets with definite useful economic lives are
amortized over their useful lives, using the straight-line method, for a period
not more than 5 years from the acquisition date and recorded as an expense
in the consolidated statement of income. Intangible assets with indefinite
lives are reviewed for impairment as of the consolidated financial statements
date, and impairment loss is recorded in the consoiidated statement of
income.

- No capitalization of intangible assets resulting from the Bank's operations is
made. They are rather recorded in the consclidated statement of income in
the same period.

- Any indications of impairment in the value of intangible assets as of the
consolidated financial statements date are reviewed. Furthermore, the
estimated useful lives of the impaired intangible assets are reassessed, and
any adjustment is made in the subsequent period.

S Software and computer programs are amortized over their estimated
economic useful lives at rates ranging from 14% to 30%.

Foreign Currency

- Transactions in foreign currencies during the year are recorded at the
exchange rates prevailing at the date of the transaction.

- Financial assets and financial liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the average exchange rates prevailing on the consolidated
statement of financial position date and declared by the Central Bank of
Jordan.

- Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies and
recorded at fair value are translated on the date when their fair value is
determined.
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- Gains or losses resulting from foreign currency translation are recorded in
the consolidated statement of income.

- Translation differences for non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are recorded as part of the change in fair value,

- When consolidating the financial statements, assets and liabilities of the
branches and subsidiaries abroad are translated from the functional
currency to the reporting currency, using the average exchange rates
prevailing on the consolidated statement of financial position date and
declared by the Central Bank of Jordan. Revenue and expense items are
translated, using the average exchange rates during the year, and exchange
differences are shown in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income and within shareholders’ equity. When one of these subsidiaries or
branches is sold, the related foreign currency differences are included in the
revenue / expenses within the consolidated statement of income.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash balances with central banks and
balances with banks and financial institutions maturing within three months, less
balances due to banks and financial institutions maturing within three months and
restricted funds.

3. Accounting Estimates

Preparation of the consolidated financial statements and the application of
the accounting policies require from the Bank's management to perform
assessments and assumptions that affect the amounts of financial assets,
financial liabilities, and fair value reserve and to disclose contingent
liabilities, Moreover, these assessments and assumptions affect revenues,
expenses, provisions, and changes in the fair value shown in the
consolidated statement of other comprehensive income and shareholders’
equity. In particular, this requires the Bank’s management to issue
significant judgments and assumptions to assess future cash flow amounts
and their timing. Moreover, the said assessments are necessarily based on
assumptions and factors with varying degrees of consideration and
uncertainty. In addition, actual results may differ from assessments due to
the changes resulting from the conditions and circumstances of those
assessments in the future,

We believe that the assessments adopted in the consolidated financial
statements are reasonable. The details are as follows:

- A provision for non-performing loans is taken on the bases and estimates
approved by management in conformity with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs). The outcome of these bases and estimates is
compared against the provisions that should be taken under the instructions
of the regulatory authorities, through which the Bank’s branches and
subsidiary companies operate. Moreover, the strictest outcome that
conforms with the (IFRSs) is used.

- Impairment loss is taken after a sufficient and recent evaluation of the
acquired properties has been conducted by approved surveyors, and is
reviewed periodically. Also, for the beginning of 2015 a gradual provision
has been calculated for the foreclosed assets against debts which has been
owned for a period more than 4 years according to the instructions of the
Central Bank of Jordan regarding this issue,



Management estimates the impairment in value when the market prices
reach a certain limit that indicates the impairment loss provided that this
does not contradict the instructions of the regulatory authorities or
International Financial Reporting Standards.

The fiscal year is charged with its portion of income tax expenditures in
accordance with the regulations, laws, and accounting standards. Moreover,
deferred tax assets and liabilities and the income tax provision are recorded.

Management periodically reassesses the economic useful lives of tangible
and intangible assets for the purpose of calculating annual depreciation and
amortization based on the general condition of these assets and the
assessment of their useful economic lives expected in the future.
Impairment loss is taken to the consolidated statement of income.

A provision is set for lawsuits raised against the Bank. This provision is
based to an adequate legal study prepared by the Bank's legal advisor.
Moreover, the study highlights potential risks that the Bank may encounter
in the future. Such legal assessments are reviewed periodically.

Management frequently reviews financial assets stated at fair value or at
cost to estimate any impairment in their value. The impairment amount is
taken to the consolidated statement of income.

Fair value hierarchy: The leve! in the fair value hierarchy is determined and
disclosed into which the fair value measurements are categorized in their
entirety, segregating fair value measurements in accordance with the levels
defined in IFRS. The difference between Level 2 and Level 3 fair value
measurements represents whether inputs are observable and whether the
unobservable inputs are significant, which may require judgment and a
careful analysis of the inputs used to measure fair value, including
consideration of factors specific to the asset or liability. When evaluating the
fair value of the financial asset or liability, the Bank uses information from
the market, if available, and in the absence of the first level inputs, the Bank
deals with the independent and qualified parties to prepare evaluation
studies. Appropriate methods of assessment and inputs used to prepare the
evaluation are reviewed by management.
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4, Cash and Balances at Central Banks

This Item consists of the following:

Cash In vaults

Balances at central banks:

- Current and demand accounts
- Time and notice deposits

- Mandatory cash reserve

- Certiflicate of depasit

Total Balances at Central Banks

Total Cash and Balances at Central Banks

= In addition to the cash reserve at the central banks, there are restricted balances amounting to JD 204,350 as of December 31, 2016
(3D 173,125 as of December 31, 2015).

December 11,

2016 2015
Jo o
55,827,031 42,996,094

8,024,658 26,831,234

15,261,385 72,444,500
122,875,977 95,759,759
= 49,800,000

146,162,020 244 835,433

201,989,051 287,831,587

- The balances that mature within a period exceeding three months amounted to JO 8,224,400 as of December 31, 2016 { 3D 7,444,500 as of

December 31, 2015)

5, Balances st Bonks and Financial Institutions

This ltem consists of the following:

Local Banks and Finaocial Institutions;
= Current and demand accounts

- Deposits due within 3 months or less
Total Local

Ranks and Financlal Institutions Abroad;
- Current and demand accounts
- Deposits due within 3 months or less

Total Abroad

December 31,

2016 2015
0 D
300,992 2,126,483

49,590,000 29,598,000

49,800,992 31,724,483
63,131,952 35,941,120
72,855,699 84,330,895

135,967,651 120,272,015
185,788,643 151,996,498

- Naon-interest bearing balances at banks and financial institutions amounted to 1D 63,143,246 as of December 31, 2015 (D 35,852,950 as of

December 31, 2015).

- There are no restricted balances as of December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015,

6. Deposits at Banks pod Financial Institutions

This Item consists of the following:

Description

Deposits maturing within a period:
- From & to 9 months

= From 9 months to 1 year

Total

Local Banks and Banks and Financial
Financtal Institutions Institutlons Abroad Total
December 31, December 31, Decamber 31,
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
Jo o o 10 o o
10,000,000 10,000,000 - 4,647,510 10,000,000 14,647,510
- - 37,793 - 37,793 -

10,000,000 10,000,000 37,793 4,647,510 10,037,793 14,647,510

« The restricted deposits amounting to 5 million as of December 31, 2016 {JD 10 million as of December 31, 2015).
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. Financial Ass at Fair Value th

This item consists of the following:

Company shares

. Di dit ies -

This item consists of the following:

Individuals (retail):

Overdraft accounts

Loans and promissory notes*

Credit cards

Real estate loans

Companies:

a- Corporates:
Overdraft accounts
Loans and promissory notes*

b- Small and Medium Companies:
Overdraft accounts
Loans and promissory notes*
Government and public sector

Total

{Less): Provision for impairment in direct credit facilities
Suspended interest
Net Direct Credit Facilities

Profit or Los

December 31,

2016 2015
o D
968,373 465,972
968,373 465,972
December 31,
2016 2015
h[») JD

14,987,764 9,506,126
389,850,749 331,945,222
14,693,636 13,015,522
260,807,630 180,761,972
129,226,465 93,574,939
571,436,672 490,424,407
42,249,538 48,415,072
127,406,049 132,653,721
21,616,898 21,701,176
1,572,275,401 1,322,002,157
(97,303,171) (74,723,925)
(27,735,628) {19,955,131)
1,447,236,602 1,227,323,101

* Net after deducting interest and commissions received in advance of JD 19,156,300 as of December 31, 2016

(1D 15,907,468 as of December 31, 2015).
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Non-performing credit faciiities amounted to JD 178,454,833, which is equivalent to 11.35% of total direct credit facilitles as of December 31, 2016

{10 144,396,634, which Is equivalent to 10.92% of total direct credit facilities as of December 31, 2015).

Non-performing credit facliities excluding interest and commissions In suspense amounted to 1D 151,586,946, which is equivalent to 9.81% of total

direct credit facllities net of interest and commission in suspense as of December 331, 2016 (ID 124,677,776, which is equivalent to 9.58% of tatal

direct credit facilities net of Interest and commission in suspense as of December 31, 2015)}.

= There are no credit facilitles granted to and guaranteed by the Government of Jordan as of December 31, 2016 and 2015.

- The balance of nen-perferming loans transferred to off - consolidated statement of financial position items amounted to JD 43,365,900 up to

December 21, 2016 (JD 43,811,011 up to December 31, 2015). These loans are fully covered by provisions and interest In suspense.

According to the Board of Directors’ resolutions, the balance of non-performing debts, in addition to Its related Interest in suspenses, of

JD 2,550,862 have been written-off during the year 2016 for on-and off - statement of financial position items (D 31,466,250 for the year 2015).

The provisions no longer needed due to settlements or debt repayments, and accordingly, transferred to other non-performing debts amounted to

D 8,719,144 as of December 31, 2016 (JD 11,186,265 as of December 31, 2015).

9, Financinl Assets gt Fair Valye through Other Comprehenslve Income

The details of this item are as follows:

December 31,

2016 2015
0 1D
Quoted Shares 12,303,548 11,935,225
Unquated Shares * 11,840,388 11,794,614
Mutuat Fund *» 4,867,994 4,111,491

29,011,930 27,841,330

* The fair value for the unquoted shares is determined according to the equity method, which is considered the best tool available te measure the fair

value of these investments, and according to the latest financial informatlon avallable.

** This item represents Investment in Abraj Capltal Fund of US Dellars 5.6 millton, which was stated at fair value as of December 31, 2016.

The tota) fund captal amounted to US Dollars 2 blllion. Mareover, the fund capital Is not guaranteed.

- Cash dividend distributions for the above-mentioned financtal assets amounted to JD 763,627 for the year-ended December 31, 2016 {JD 967,280

for the year ended December 31, 2015).
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10, Financial Assets Measured at Amortized Cost

The details of this item are as follows:

December 31,
2016 2015
o s}
Treasury bills and bonds 696,556,757 583,650,973
Cempanies bonds and debentures 58,878,536 18,832,313
755,435,293 602,483,286
Less: Impairment provision {625,338) {625,338)
754,809,955 601,857,948
Bills and Bonds Return Analysis:
Fixed return 754,809,955 601,857,948
Total 754,809,955 601,857,948
The maturity dates of financial assets measured at amortized cost are as follows:
2016 2015
D D
During a year 288,171,855 175,484,129
From 1 to 3 years 325,388,559 300,300,129

More than 3 years

-ag .

141,249 541

126,073,590

754,809,955

601,857,948
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The detalls of this Item are as follows

2016
Computer
Software and
Applications Total
Descriotion o o
Balance-beginning of the year 1,428,562 1,428,562
Additions 23,732,508 23,732,508
Amgrtization for the year (4,020,035} {4,020,035)
Balance-End of the Yaar 21,141,035 21,141,035
Annual amortization rate % 14-30
2ms
Computer
Software and
Applications Total
Desgription hln] o
Balance-beginning of the year 1,475,817 1,475,817
Additions 2,687,650 2,687,650
Amortization for the year {2,734,905) (2,734,905)
Batarice-End of the Year 1,428,562 1,428,562
Annual amortization rate % 20-30
* On the first of October 2016 a new banking system was launched T24 and the old banking system was stopped,
14, Othar Asgets
The details of this item are as foliows December 31,
2016 2015
D Jo
Real estate foreclosed by the Bank against debts * 65,696,413 72,339,431
Accrued interest and commissions 9,554,288 6,451,441
Checks and transfers under collection 6,967,877 6,293,504
Fareciosed assets sold - net ** 5,756,507 7,993,477
Prepaid expenses 2,686,002 2,547,205
Variaus debtors 3,598,306 3,916,688
Real estate for sale 55,151 55,151
Prepaid rent 1,634,445 2,052,232
Receivables - disposal of a subsidiary *** 743,048 825,000
Refundable deposits =4+« 315,419 258,115
Revenue stamps 154,537 194,885
Frepald Income tax 989,257 -
Temporary advances 4,134,579 5,308,000
Cther debit balances 51,542 1,898,438
106,377,371 110,133,567
* The movement on assets foreclosed by the Bank against debts is as follows: Forectosed Real Estate
2015 2015
escription 0 T}
Balance - beginning of the year 72,339,431 75,727,167
Adgditions 1,981,134 6,431,957
Disposals (6,972,850} (3,725,315)
Impairment loss {2,603,231) {1,736,427)
Provision for viplated foreclosed assets "=+ o (790,158) (4,574,792)
Recovered Impairment loss 1,366,175 216,841
Recovered provision for violated of foreclosed assets 375,912 -
Balance - End of the Year 65,695,413 72,339,431

o According to the Banks' Law, buildings and plots of land foreclosed by the Bank against debts due from customers should be sold within two years from
the ownership date. For exceptional cases, the Central Bank of Jordan may axtend this period for two additional years

“*  During the year 2011, the Bank sold Land No. (879}, Basin No. (3), Qatna South; and Land No, (418), Basin No. {3), Qatna South of Amman Village for
installments of 1D 4.4 miflion to the South House Trade and Investment Company, An amount of 1D 3.4 million has been recelved during the year 2012.
Moreover, during the year 2013, a provision of JD one million has been booked for the entire balance since the amount is considered a deoubtful debt,
During the year 2015, the Bank sold the estate erected on Lands Nos. {923 and 924}, Basin No. {5), Al Shailieh Qwaisme Village of Amman's southern
lands, known as (Baghdad Garage), to Jamai Al Shawabkeh and Partner Company for 10 3.6 million In Instaltments. Dutng 2017, the sale transaction
was cancefed, and the Bank returned the first payment of 10 900,000 to the buyer.

*** On December 29, 2014, an agreement was signed with Al Quds Company for Learning, Traning and Consuiting to sell the Bank's interest in Al Zarga
Natlonal College Company, Including its capital share of 100% of the Company's capital, Furthermore, the Investment was derecognized on June
30, 2014.

#*%* This item represents cash deposits in a forelgn trading and financial brokerage company, under biquidation, and s Currently restricted until the liquidation
procedures are finalized. A provision was booked for JD 79,864 as of December 31, 2016 (JD 89,442, as of December 31, 201%)

®*** According to the Central Bank of Jordan’s Circutar No. 10/1/4076 , 10/1/7096 , 10/1/6841 and 10/1/2510 issued on February 14, 2017, regarding the
provision for the assets foreciosed against debts, a minimum of 10% Is deducted as 2 provision for the violated foreclosed assets as of the end of the
year 2016. Moreaver, a pravision of 10% is to be taken until it reaches 50% of these properties. As a result a provision of JD 790 thousands has been
booked as of December 31, 2015.

The movement on provision for doubtful debts of foreclosed assets Is a3 lollows

2018 2015
Description o o
Balance-beginning of the year 4,574,792 -
Additions 790,158 4,574,792
Amortizatlon for the year (375,912) -
Balance-End of the Year 4,989,038 4,574,792

o -



15, Bonks and Financlal Institutions Depgsity

The details of this itern are as follows:

December 31, 2016 December 31, 2015
Inside Qutside Inside Outside
Jordan Jordan Total Jordan Jorgan Total
pls] o 10 plo} pln} plr]
Current accounts and demand deposits 892,423 5,307,454 6,199,887 597,946 4,029,174 4,627,120
Time deposits Q 51,153,768 51,153,768 117,975 25,886,435 26,004,410
Total 892I433 56,461,222 57,353,655 71_&22_1 29|915|609 3°|531|53D

- There are no banks and financial institutions depesits maturing within a period exceeding three months as of December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015,

16, Customers Deposits

The detais of this itern are as follows:

Far the Year Ended December 31, 2016

Small and Medium Government
Ingividuals Corporates Companies ang Public Sector Total
pls] Pl i) 10 pls]
Current accounts and demand deposits 254,672,627 129,955,006 122,701,997 15,354,235 522,683,865
Saving accounts 257,598,870 78,469 598,102 - 258,275,441
Time and notice deposits 755,905,663 277,147,028 165,436,522 87,846,240 _ 1,286,335,453
1,268,177,160 407,180,503 288,736,621 103,200,475 2,067,284 759

For the Year Ended December 31, 2015

Smail and Medium Governiment
Indlviduals Corporates Companies and Public Sector Total
o] ] fila] o n
Current accounts and demand depasits 243,782,489 117,960,151 118,291,790 19,670,881 499,705,311
Saving accounts 202,599,698 2,459,343 18,136,351 34,616 223,230,008
Time and notlce deposits 634,074,229 183,871,660 149,633,304 91,708,213 _ 1,059,287,406
1|080|456 416 304,291i154 286, 061|445 lll|413|7|0 1|72|222|725

- Government and public sector deposits inside Jordan amounted to JD 103,150,383, which is equivalent to 4 99% of total deposits as of December 31, 2016

(3D 111,325,653, which is equivalent 1o 6.25% of total depasits as of December 31, 2015).

- Non-nterest bearing deposits amounted to JD 528,350,577 , which is equivalent to 25.56% of total deposits as of December 31, 2016 {ID 452,550,667,

which is equlvatent to 25.39% as of December 31, 2015).

- Restricted deposits amounted Lo )D 1,796,457 , which is equivalent to 0.09 % of total deposits as of December 31, 2016 { )0 975,257 which is equivalent to 0.05%

as of December 31, 2015).

- Dormant accounts amounted ta JD 45,258,348 , a3 of December 31, 2016 (JD 45,799,529 as of December 31, 2015)

+ Dormant deposits furd amounted to JO 5E9,600 , which Is equivalent to 0.0 % of tatal deposits as of December 31, 2016 (J0 621,733 which is equivalent to

0,03 % as of Decamber 31, 2015),

17 Cash Margins
The detalls of this item are as fofiows
Dacember 31,
2016 2015
o 0

Cash margins on direct credit facilities 207,565,613 222,182,281
Cash mangins on Indirect credit facllities 31,491,165 41,043,151
Marginal deposits 4,188,881 3,115,413
Other margins 12,637,472 12,856,472

255,883,131 279,197,217
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18, Burrovesd Punds

The detals of this fem 3re 83 foldws

Detember 31, 2018
Cantral Bank of Jordan

Cantral Bank cf Jordan

Cantral Gank of Jorden

Cantral Bank of lordan

Cartrat Bank of Jordan

Contral Bank of Jordan

Cantrsl Bank of Jordan

Jordan Mongase Refinance Comoarny [Loan 18 & Jubdidury)

Local Bank {Lean to & subudiany|

Local Bank (Overdraft to 2 subsdiary)

Local Bank (Loan 1o & subddiaryi

Jordan Mortoaae Refinance Compsny (Loan 10 & SUDBddry)

LocM Bank (Loan E5 & Subsicidey)

Lotal Rank (Loan 1o & oMY}

Lot Bark (toan ta & subudisry)

Local Bank {Loan ta & submsdiary)

Daveioomant snd Emplevmaent Fund {Losn 18 4 subsdiry)

Dagmber 31, 2015

Canuar Bank of Jardan

Central Bank of Jordan

Cantral Bank of Jordan

Lbcsl Bank [Loan to a subsidiary |

Loeal Bank (Overdreft ta 2 subsdiary}

Jorden Mortaaae Rehnance Company (Loan to d sultiedidry)

Local Bank [Loan o & wubyidiary)

Locat Bank {Lesn ta & subsiciary}

Locs Bank (Loan to 4 subudisry)

Deveicpment and Empioyment Fond (Loan to & subsiciary)

- Loans with & Nzed intersat rite dmountac ta 10 86,570,011 ay of Dacembaer 31, 2016 { ID 45,584,564 23 of Decemesr 13, 2015).

Number of [n: s
Armount Total Agmywing Matunty Fraquancy Gudrantess
]
4,008,000 30 26 M- anmal isallments -
1.1%0.000 20 1] semi-anausl inttakmants =
1,350,000 19 19 B4R ANNuAT INSLATATLY -
2,305,000 0 = semi-anmeat instaiments
5910441 I 0 3amé- annual instaliments
LTI n 2 sami-annual ingtamemty 2
AR AR = ] sami- gnay sl instalments .
15 008, 000 ] ] = .
ERE L - st of March 2017
S mil%on depoyt
relabing to tha
LA i IO 5 mathon overera®t ceiling Jordan Ahli Bank
14 mosthiy instaiments
wffectiva from tha witharawsd
457 857 1] - dite
#rst of July 2018, Dacember
23, 1018, Apsi 3, 2019, May
X0 ) oo 5 - ] 2. 2019 ang May 11. 29 s
24 mentity Instalmens
eifactiva trom the withdrawal
T ™ " dite =
34 monthly instadmanzs
effacteve from the witndrawst
911 BT S date -
24 monthly INSLAHMANLS
affective From the withdriwsl
B E tLl date
1§ monthly instaliments.
affectiva Prom the wndrawal
LR R b date
30 monthly wystsbmants
wftactiva from the withdrawal
date aftar the grace penod
83,313 n o of wu months .
88,510,031
2967 372 ko] FL: Ul O BT T TR T T -
1.350.000 o 11 - i niliiments
8,350,000 0 F seme-annusl instakments
24 monthly nstatiments 5 mikan Sepant
wifactivi fTOm tha withatawal LAY T8 tha
AL A H oiw Jordan A Bank
3 miion depost
FelaLng to the
AWE i 10 3 ik gverdralt caling Jardan Anll Bank
April 29, 2018, May 11,
216, Aret of July J018 and
17.500.000 b i Dacenber 28, 2018
24 rronthly Instakments
alfectiva from the withdrawal
4,857,000 24 dara
33 rnonthly Instalmentd
affectiva from the withdrawal
BEE0AY 1 date =
18 monthly instamenty
efactive from tha witrdrawal
TR » 4]
30 menthly instalmants
Metive from the withdrawal
daca afvar tha grace pancd
20,000 L of us montns .
45‘56! 564

Relenzing

Intarest Intergs

Aate LT}

L)
213

2.5 .

1%

¥

2%

41 -

4.4

£ 45475 i

T

hE. S ¥ 1]

i1 r
25

15

35

4.55-5.73 "



219, Varjous Provistons

The details of this item are as follows:

Year 2016

Provision for end - of - service indemnity
Provision for the decline in foraign currencies
Provision for legal clatms against the Bank

Other provisions

Year 201
Provision for end - of - service indemnity
Provision for the decline in foreign currencies
Pravision for legal claims against the Bank

Other provislons

20. Provision for Income Tax

a) Income tax provision:

The movement on the provision for income tax is as follows:

Balance - beginning of the year
Income tax paid

Income tax for the year

Balance - End of the Year

Balance Balance
Beginning of End of the
Returned to
the Year Additions Disposals Revente Year
D o b D D
2,609,731 528,871 {110,968) 3 3,027,634
234,156 115,091 & (349,247) *
241,903 11,000 (36,743) e 216,160
577,416 181,596 & (609,917) 149,095
3,663,206 836,558 (147,711) (959,164) 3,392,889
3,188,392 214,504 (789,165) S 2,609,731
247,648 - (13,492) = 234,156
278,988 100,000 (137,085) e 241,903
570,396 __207,611 {200,591) = 577,416
4,285,424 518,115 Sl !140!333! - 3,663,206
2016 2015
o} o
7,557,618 9,860,350
(5,028,571)  (13,047,955)
2,397,674 10,745,223
926,721 7,557,618
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Income tax expense for the vear, which appears in the consolidated statement of Income, consists of the following

2016 2015
pl i
Accrued income tax on the year's profit 2,397,674 10,745,223
Deferred tax assets for the year (1,341,408)  (2,452,276)
Amartization of deferred tax assets 1,260,157 958,061
Deferred tax llabilities {410,408} 410,408
Balance - End of the Year 1,906,015 9,661,416

= The income tax rale for banks in Jordan Is 35%. Moreover, the income tax rates in the countries whera the Bank has Investments or branches
range fram 12.5% to 28.79%,

= Afinal settlenent was reached with the Income and Sales Tax Department up to the end of the year 2014 for Jordan branches.

- Afinal settlement with the Income Tax and Value-Added Tax Dep has been
and it ks expected to finish 2015 settiements during the year 2017

hed for Patestine branches up to the and of the year 2014

- Afinal tax settlement has been reached for the Bank’s branch in Cyprus up ta tha year 2009. Moreaver, the company has filed Its income tax
return for the years 2010, 2011, 2012, 2013, 2014 and 2015. Asa, the Incoma Tax Department has reviewed the tax returns up to the year 2013,
and no final decislon has been taken yet.

= A final sentlement for Incoma tax for the subsidiary company (AR Brokerage Company) has been reached up to the end of the year 2014,

Marecver, the company has filed is income tax return, However, the Income and Sales Tax D D has not

¢ them yat.
= A final settiement far income tax for the subsidiary company (Ahll Financial Leasing Company) has been reached up to the end of the year 2014.
Morsaver, the company has filed its Income tax raturn for the year 2015, However, the Income and Sales Tax Department has not

reviawed them yet,

- Afinal settlement for Income tax for the subsidlary company (Ahll Micro Finance Company} has bean reached up ta the end of the year 2014,

Moreaver, the company has filed s income tax return for the year 2015, However, the Income and Sales Tax D P 1t has not revi

them yet.

~ A proviglon for Income tax for the year ended December 31, 2016 has been baoked far the Bank, its branches abroad, and subsidiary companies.
In the opinion of management and its tax advisor, the p taken In the Hld finsnclal statements as of December 31, 2016 i5
adequate for meeting the expected tax llabilities, and no further ilabilities will exceed the provision taken by the Bank,

+ Deferred tax assets and labilities have been caiculated as of December 31, 2015 and 2015, according to the following rates:

Decamber 31,
locome tax rate 2016 2015
Jordan Branches 35% 5%
Palestina Branches 28 79% 28.78%
The movemaent on the dafemed tax assets/| is as foll
2016 2015
Assats Liabllities Assats Liabilities
D 2] I 2]
Balance - beginning of the year 5,137,976 1,058,399 4,643,761 987,012
Additlons 1,341,408 403,949 2,452,276 457,577
Amortized {1,260,157) {459, 764) {958,061} (386,190}

Balance - End of the Year 6,219,227 1,002 584

219, 92, 5,137,975 1,058,359

b) Deferred Tax Assets / Liabllities:
The detalls of this item are as follows:

2016
Beginning Amaunis Year - End Deferred
Included Accoupts Bal Additl Rel Balance Tax
1D iG] 5} i) 1D
3. Deferred Tax Assets
Prior years’ provision for non-performing loans 1,021,893 168,813 (1,073,214 2,127,492 612,572
Interest in suspense 2,175,444 69,361 (64,603) 2,180,196 627,747
Previen for impairment in real estate 5875238 3,393,389 (2,465,956} 10,798,671 3,779,535
Provision for lawsuits 241,903 11,000 (36,743} 216,160 72,346
Pravision for end - of -+ service Indemnity 2,534,552 492,664 {110,098) 2,917,118 68,237
Provision for the decline In foreign currencies 234,156 115,891 (349,247) - .
Provision for Impalirment of financial assets measured at amortized cost
625,338 - - 625,338 218,868
Other provisions 106,437 32211 - 138,648 39,822

18,824/951 4,282,529 {4,103, B67) 19,003 623 §,219.227

b, Deferred Tax Liabilities
Fair value reservas for financal assets at fair valus through other

comprehensive Income* 1,851,404 1,013,123 - 2,864,527 1,002,584
Sihey 1,172,595 . {1,172,595) - -
3,023,099 1,013,123 {1,172,595) 2,864,527 __ 1,002,584
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2015

Beginning Amounts Year - End Deferred
Balance Additlons Released Balance Tax
Included Accounts JD iD 1D D pl»;
2. Deferred Tax Assets
Priar years' provision for non-performing loans 3,053,870 437,590 {459,567} 3,031,893 890,369
Interast in suspense 2,271,454 87,064 (183,074) 2,175,444 626,376
Provision for impairment In real estate 3,838,440 6,311,220 (274,422) 9,875,238 3,456,334
Provision for lawsuits 278,988 100,000 (137,085) 241,903 81,356
Provision for end - of - service indemnity 3,095,379 182,958 (743,785) 2,534,552 752,073
Provision for the declire in foreign currencies 247,648 - (13,492) 234,156 81,954
Provision for impalrment of financial assets measured
at amortized cost 625,338 * - 625,338 218,868
QOther provisions 95,424 11,013 = 106,437 30,646

13,506|541 7,129,845 51!811!425! 18,824,961 6,137,976

b. Deferred Tax Liabilities
Fair value reserves for financial assets at falr vaiue
through other comprehensive income* 2,820,033 134,768 (1,103,397} 1,851,404 647,591

Qther - 1,172,595 & 1,172,595 410,408

2,820,033 1,307,363 {1,103,397) 3,023,999 1,058,399

* Deferred tax liabilitles resuited from changes in the Fair value of the financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive

income which Is stated as net of deferred tax liabilitles within the fair value reserve under Shareholders' equity.

¢- Summary of the reconciliation of accounting income to taxable income:

2016 2015
o o
Accounting Income 8,180,948 32,494,140
Tax exempted Incame (11,944,363) (9,984,506)
Non-deductlble expenses 6,824,081 10,162,067
Taxable Income 3,060,666 32,671,701
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21, Other Liabillities

The details of this item are as follows:

Accepted checks and transfers

Accounts payable for financial brokerage customers
Accrued interest

Temporary deposits

Varlous creditors

Accrued expenses

Interest and commissions recelved in advance
Checks and transfers-delayed in payment

Provision for Technical and Vocational Education and Training Support Fund fees
Board of Directors remuneration

Revenues received in advance

Other labllities

22, Capital and Share Premium

December 31,
2016 2015
o] o

9,803,241 9,900,297
594,886 851,493
6,128,897 5,110,566
12,202,163 7,507,119
3,627,961 4,616,550
3,380,080 1,163,840
612,616 240,354
1,633,114 1,567,407
157,255 157,255
83,018 77,809
24,079 16,294
232,064 5,869
38,479,374 31,214,853

= The Bank's authorized and pald-up capital amounted to JO 175 million divided Into 175 million shares of JD 1 each as of December 31, 2016

(JD 175 million as of December 31, 2015).

- The General Assembly resolved, In its extraordinary meeting heid on April 27, 2015, to distribute 10% of paid-up capital as cash dividends

as of December 31, 2015, which is equlvalent to JD 17.5 million, to the shareholders for the year 2015.

- The General Assembly resolved, in its extraordinary meeting held on April 19, 2015, to distribute 10% of paid-up capltal as cash dividends

as of December 31, 2014, which Is equivalent to JD 17.5 million, to the shareholders for the year 2014.
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2%, _Reserves

The detalls of reserves as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 are as follows:

A Statutory resecye
The accumulated balances In this account represent appropriations from net income before tax at 10% according to the Banks Law and

the Companies Law. This reserve cannot be distributed to shareholders.

b, Voluntarv reseryve
The accumulated balances in thls account represent appropriations from net income before tax at a maximum of 20%. The voluntary
reserve can be used for the purposes decided by the Board of Directors. Mareover, the General Assembly of Shareholders have the right

to distribute it as dividends to shareholders in part or in full.

.. General banking risks reserve

This item represents the general banking risks reserve according to the Centrat Bank of Jordan Enstructlons

. Perlodic fluctuations reserve

This reserve represents the periodic fluctuations reserve, calculated according to the Palestinian Monetary Authgrity's Instructions No. (1)

for the Year 2011, concerning all banks operating In Palestine on January 27, 2010. Moreaver, the periodic fluctuations reserve Is calculated
at 15% of the net profit after tax, Additionally, the Bank continues to make this annual deduction provided that this reserve balance does

nat exceed 20% of paid-up capital. The reserve cannat be used for any purpose unless a prior written approval is obtalned from the Palestinian

Menetary Authority.

The restricted reserves are as foliows :

December 31,

Reserve 2016 2015 Restriction nature
o o
General banking risks reserve 14,988,716 11,693,374 According to the Central Bank

of Jordan Instructions

Statutory reserve 52,015,203 51,197,108 According to Banks and Compariies Laws

Periodic fluctuations reserve 2,394,566 2,080,497 According to the Palestinian Monetary
Authorlty Enstructions

24, Fair Value Reserve - Net

The details of this item are as foliows:

December 31,

2016 2015
10 o

Balance - beginning of the year 1,203,412 1,833,020

Seld shares 256,549 9,275

Deferred tax liabilitles {354,593) 339,020
Net unrealized income (losses) transferred to the

consolidated statement of comprehensive income 756,575 {977,903)

Balance - End of the Year 1,861,943 1,203,412

* Falr value reserve is stated net of deferred tax labilities of 1D 1,002,584 as of December 31, 2016 (JD 647,991 as of December
31, 2015)
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2%, Retaiped Earninas

The detalls of this item are as follows:

Decemnber 31,

2016 2015
Jo D
Balance -beginning of the year 38,645,258 40,795,475
Income for the year 6,274,933 22,832,724
Distributed dividends ™ (17,500,000} (17,500,000)
Transfers to reserves {4,427,506) (7,475,790)
(Loss) from sale of financlal assets at fair value through other comprehenslve Income (286,846) {7,151)
Balance - End of the Year 22,705,839

705, 38!645‘258

- Retained eamings include an amount of JD 6,219,227 restricted by the Central Bank of Jordan against deferred tax assets as of

December 31, 2016 (1D 6,137,976 as of December 31, 2015).

* The Board of Directors recommended to the Bank's General Assembly to distribute 5% of the Bank's pald-up Capital, at the date of
the Annual General Assembly's meeting, as cash dividends and 5% free stocks to the Shareholders for the year to the Shareholders
for the year 2016. Such distribution is subject to the approval of the Central Bank of Jordan and the General Assembly of Shareholders,

Moreover, profits of 10% were distributed to shareholders during the last year as cash dividends, which is equivalent to JD 17.5 million,



26. Interest Income

The details of this item are as follows:

Direct credit facilities:
Individuals (Retail):
Current accounts
Loans and promissory notes
Credit cards
Real estate loans
Companies:
Corporates:
Current accounts
Loans and promissory notes
Small and Medium Companies:
Current accounts
Loans and promissory notes
Government and Public Sector
Balances at central banks

Balances and deposits at banks and financial institutions

Financial assets measured at amortized cost

27. Int Expe
The detalls of this item are as follows:

Banks and financlal institutions deposits
Customers deposits:
Current and demand deposits
Saving accounts
Time and notice deposits
Cash margins
Borrowed funds
Loan guarantee fees

2 ission venue -
The detalls of this item are as follows:

Credit commissions:
Direct credit facilities
Indirect credit facilities
Other commissions
{Less): Commissions paid
Net Commissions Revenue

_41_

2016 2015
D 1D
1,469,574 1,051,528
23,572,123 21,770,362
2,155,438 2,336,573
14,620,978 13,772,142
8,527,212 7,619,853
39,849,134 37,175,727
3,311,967 3,998,196
16,907,938 17,363,744
1,358,624 1,786,272
1,535,510 2,853,283
1,050,544 1,045,789
24,875,890 20,141,923
139,234,932 130,915,392
2016 2015
1D 1D
605,855 800,872
213,456 415,779
907,593 1,576,248
38,922,593 30,611,317
6,170,997 7,007,241
2,765,523 1,679,120
3,980,101 3,241,592
53,566,118 45,332,169
2016 2015
1D D
7,767,326 6,346,531
4,395,349 4,949,486
9,804,700 9,647,352
(634,471) (614,594)
21,332,904 20,328,775




29. Foreign Exchange Income

The details of this item are as follows:

As a resuit of trading
As a resuit of evaluation

29. {1.055) Income from Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

The detalls of this ltem are as follows:

2016

Companies shares

2015
Companles shares

31. Other Revenue

The details of this item are as follows:

Recovered interest in suspense *

Brokerage commission income

Income from sale of propertles and equipment
Income from sale of foreclosed assets**
Recovery of debts previously written-off ***
Income from check books

Rental income of Bank's real estate

Rental Income of safe deposit boxes

Income from cash boxes dlfferences
Refundable equipments impairment losses
Income from previous years

Other income

* The following are the detalls of recovered Interest in suspense:

Recovered interest in suspense

Interest in suspense from debts written-off

2016 2015
m o
968,044 715,944
2,345,473 2,600,846
3,313,517 3,316,790
Realized (Loss) Unrealized {Loss)
Profit Total
D o
{25,552) (36,231) (61,783)
(25,552) (36,231) {61,783)
6,193 112,181 118,374
6,193 112,181 118,374
2016 2015
D b »)
534,306 1,905,445
138,233 120,065
657,020 386,295
3 3,756,530
950,689 1,316,979
153,690 206,699
205,446 244,432
146,991 152,751
4,245 24,635
1,366,175 216,841
493,553 271,940
581,468 856,132
5,231,816 9,458,744
2016 2015
plv} ID
486,942 1,788,951
47,364 116,494
534,306 1,905,445

**  During the year 2015, two plots of land No. {609 and 894) Basin 16 South AL Waibdeh were sold, resulting in a galn of JD 3.7 million.

*** This account represents amounts recovered from debts, for which a full pravision has been taken In the previous years.
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2. Expe

The details of this item are as follows:

Salaries, bonuses and employees' benefits
Bank's contribution to social security
Bank's contribution to staff provident fund
Medical Expenses

End-of-service indemnity

Employees' training

Travel expenses

Employees’ life insurance

Employees' meals

Employees' uniforms

- 43

2016 2015
D D
35,283,650 32,110,544
3,022,972 2,850,326
1,797,145 1,766,718
1,512,289 1,558,971
528,871 210,504
324,398 424,182
271,140 387,530
148,945 203,106
266,021 146,052
30,550 14,426
43,185,981 39,672,359




33, Other Expenses

The details of this item are as follows:

Fees and subscriptions

Maintenance and repair
Advertisement

Printing and stationery

Rent and key money

Studies, research and consulting expenses
Insurance fees

Water, electricity and heating

Legal fees

Donations

Transportation

Telecommunication

Miscellaneous

Other operating expenses*

General assembly meeting expenses
Board of Directors' expenses
Security

Professional fees

Stamps fees

Entertainment and hospitality
Appraisal expenses of land and real estate
Lawsuits provision expenses

Loss on real estate sales

Board of Directors' remunerations

2016 2015
D 10
4,412,232 4,114,465
4,800,997 5,288,824
2,288,477 2,691,015
976,655 1,064,812
2,771,830 2,769,729
1,514,400 492,317
1,613,153 1,450,436
2,155,647 2,076,121
1,540,948 1,260,599
555,865 637,994
634,274 628,463
1,170,330 836,449
536,910 337,121
1,211,100 n
49,857 44,945
960,600 903,300
548,000 508,872
354,261 341,193
6,213 171,450
21,228 28,352
25,848 34,608
11,000 100,000
309,765 413,027
65,000 65,000
28,534,590 26,250,092

* According to board of directors decision issued on March 3, 2016 the accounts restricted in the banks’ books which are

related to the cards department have been amortized.

34, Earnings per Share for Bank's Shareholders

The details of this items are as follows:

Inceme for the year

Weighted average number of shares
Earnings Per Share - Bank Shareholders:
Basic & Diluted

33. Cash and Cash Eguivalents

The details of this items are as follows:

Cash and balances at central banks maturing within 3 months

Add: Balances at banks and financial institutions due within 3 months

Less: Banks and financial institutions deposits due within 3 months
Restricted balances

- 44 -

2016 2015
o iD
6,274,933 22,832,724

175,000,000

175,000,000

0.036 0.130
2016 2015
10 D

193,764,651 280,387,087
185,788,643 151,996,498
(57,353,655) {30,631,530)

(204,390) {173,125)
321,995,249 401,578,930




36. Related Party Balances and Transactions

a. The consolidated financial statements include the financlal statements of the Bank and the following subsidiaries:

Capital of the Company

2016 2015
Company Name Equlty Ratio
%
D plo]
Ahll Micro Finance Company 100 6,000,000 3,500,000
Ahli Financial Leasing Company 160 17,500,000 17,500,000
Ahli Brokerage Company 100 5,000,000 7,500,000

The Bank entered into transactions with sister companies, major shareholders, Board of Directors, and executive management

within the normal banking practices according to the commercial Interest and commission rates.

Related Party Total
Board of
Directors Executive December 31,
Assoclates Subsidiaries * Members Management Dther *= 2016
D o o o} b JD
On-Consolidated Statement of Financlal Position Items:
Credit facilitles 3,588,734 7,792,644 2,887,296 86,911,332 161,180,006
Customers' deposits 322,474 4,462,114 18,734,998 2,373,339 8,327,021 34,219,946
Cash margins - . 60,881 1,921,060 1,981,941
Off-Consolldated Statement of Financial Position Items:
Letters of guarantee 50,000 58,000 = 5,890,735 5,998,735
Consolidated Statement of Income;
Interest and commissions income 13 60,909 317,960 133,742 5,848,976 6,361,600
Interest and commissions expense 27,515 175,006 1,933,205 34,605 312,800 2,483,131
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On-Consolldated Statement of Financial Position Items.
Credit facilities
Customers’ degosits

Cash margins

Qff-Consolidated Statement of Financiat Position [tems;

Letters of guarantee

Censolidated Statement of Income;
Interest and commissions Income

1t and e

* The transactions and balances between the bank and its subsidiaries have been excluded from the ¢

Retated Party

Assacistes

0

776,639

50,000

2,795

201,924

Subsidiaries *

s}

1,311,841

3,016.713

1,055,608

52,319

97,225

Total

Board of

Directors

Members

o

6,644,706

46,613,522

353,086

90,378

366,021

333,483

ed financlal stat

“* This itern represents companies partially owned by members of the Bank's Board of Directors, Board of Directors” relatives, and the Bank's employees.

= During the yaar 2015, credit faciities pranted to retated parties of JD 3.2 millien were transfarred 1o off-consolidated statement of financlal pesitien items. Moreover, these

facliities were fully covered by provisions.

- There are accounts recelvable from a subsidiary company (Ahll Brokerage Company) of 10 2 451,075, beionging 10 a related party as of Decemnar 31, 2016. On October 31, 2013

the Company signed a settt

monthly instaliments, as well as enhancement of thelr guarantees.

agreement with those cllents to pay the

an advance

upon signing the settlement agreement, in addition to

- According o the Board of Directors' decislon on Dacember 17, 2014, a contract was signed with the former chalrmnan of the Board on January 15, 2015 for consulting services

to the Bank for 10 30,000 manthly, in addition to health and iife insurance and other benefits, for five years. The contract was terminated in the subsequent period, affective

fram the beginning of January 2018, for JD 940,000.

During the first half of 2015, an amount of 1D 300 thousand was paid te the former Chief Executive Officer 25 an additional bonus eccording Lo a subsenuent decision to the

Board of Directars' decislon on December 20, 2015,

- Interest Income prices range from 4.5% to 9.25%,

- Interest expanse prices range from 0% to 5.5%.

and b

b. The following is 8 summery of the executive m

Salarles and benefit
Travelling

Other

ent

T

2016 2015
o ple)
4,244,501 5,593,430
194,980 235,312
113,164 15,877
4,552,735 5,044,627

Executlve December 31,
Management Other ** 2ns
o o 1o
4,307,345 BS,596,969 97,860,851
1,950,547 12,441,114 54,818,535
55,883 1,962,265 2,401,204
= 5,122,354 6,J17.745
222,513 5,937,265 7.580,913
56,350 620,981 1,317,963



37. Financial Instruments That Do Not_Appear at _Fair Value in the

Consolidated Financial Statemen

There are no significant differences between the carrying value and fair
value of financial assets and financial liabilities at the end of the vyear
2016 and 2015,

38. Risk Man ment
The Bank's risk management conducts its activities (identification,
measurement, management, monitoring, and controlling) through applying
the best international practices in connection with risk management,
administrative organization, and risk management's tools in accordance with
the size of the Bank, its activities, and types of risks it is exposed to.

The organizational structure of the Bank is integrated by risk management
contro! according to each level. Moreover, the Corporate Governance
Committee, at the Board of Directors’ level, decides on the Bank’s risk policy
and strategy, and ensures the management of risk. This is to ensure setting
up and controlling the policies and instructions at an appropriate level for
the types of risks the Bank is exposed to until the achievement of the
acceptable return for the shareholders without impacting the Bank’s financial
strength. In this context, the work of the Risk Management Department is
complemented by the work of the committees of executive management
such as the Assets and Liabilities Committee and the Credit Facilities’
Committee,

38 a. Credit Risk

The Bank’s operations involve the Bank's exposure to many risks such as
credit risk relating to the default or inability of the other party to the
financtal instrument to settle its obligations towards the Bank, which causes
losses. An important duty of the Bank and its management is to ensure that
these risks do not go beyond the general framework predetermined in the
Bank’s credit policy and maintain their levels within a balanced relationship
among risk, return, and liquidity.

Credit management at the Bank is conducted by several committees from
higher management and executive management. Moreover, credit facilities
ceilings that can be granted to one client (individual or corporate) or related
parties are specified in compliance with the ratios approved by the Central
Bank of Jordan, while relying on the credit facilities distribution method to
each credit manager and sector. This is performed by taking Iinto
consideration the geographic area in a manner that achieves congruence
among risks, returns, and the optimal utilization of the available resources
and the enhancement of the Bank's ability to diversify lending and allocate it
to customers and economic sectors,

The Bank monitors credit risks by periodicaily evaluating the credit standing
of the customers in accordance with the customers’ credit valuation system
based on credit risk elements and probabilities of non-payment for financial,
managerial, or competition reasons. In addition, the Bank obtains proper
guarantees from customers for the cases requiring that according to each
customer’s risk level and extension of additional credit facilities.

Moreover, the Bank monitors credit risk and is continuously evaluating the

credit standing of customers, in addition to obtaining proper guarantees
from them.
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The Bank’s credit risk management policy includes the following:

1.

Specifying credit ceilings and concentrations:

The credit policy includes specific and clear ratios for the maximum credit
that can be granted to a customer. Moreover, there are different credit
ceilings for each administrative level.

Determining the risk mitigation methods:
The Bank's risk management activity depends on several methods to
mitigate risk as follows:

- Collaterals and their convertibility to cash and coverage of the credit
granted.

- Pre-approval of the credit facilities committee on the extension of
credit.

Credit approval authority varies from one management level to another
based on the customer’s portfolio size, maturity, and customer's risk
degree.

Mitigating the assets and liabilities’ risks concentration:

The Bank works efficiently to manage this risk. Moreover, its annual plan
includes the well-studied distribution of credit focusing on the most
promising sectors. In addition, credit is distributed to several geographic
areas inside and outside of the kingdom.

Studying, monitoring, and following up on credit:

The Bank developed the necessary policies and procedures to determine the
study method of credit, maintaining the objectivity and integrity of decision
- making, and ensuring that credit risk is accurately evaluated, properly
approved, and continuously monitored.

The general framework of the credit policy includes setting up credit
approval authorities and clarifying credit limits and the method of
determining the risk degree.

The Bank's organizational structure involves segregating the work units
responsible for granting credit from the work units responsible for
monitoring credit as regards to the credit terms, soundness of the credit
decision, implementation of all credit extension terms, adherence to the
credit ceilings and determinants in the credit’s policy, and other related
matters.

Moreover, there are specific procedures for following up on performing
credit facilities to keep them performing and non-performing credit facilities
to treat them.

The Bank mitigates the assets and liabilities concentration risk through
distributing its activities to various sectors and geographic areas inside and
outside the kingdom. Moreover, the Bank adopts a specific policy that
shows the credit ceilings granted to banks and countries with high credit
ratings, and reviews them continuously through the Assets and Liabilities
Committee, to distribute the risks and utilize the credit evaluation. The
investment policy specifies the investment allocation ratios and their
determinants in order to distribute them in a way that achieves a high
return and lowers the risk
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Credit risk exposure (less impalrment and Interest In suspense and before guarantees and other

risk - mitigating factors):

On-the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position Items
Batances at the Central Banks
Balances at banks and financial instltutions

Deposits at banks and financlal institutions

Credit facilities:
Individuals
Real estate loans
Companies;
Corporates
Small and medium companles
Government and public sector
Bonds, Bills and Debentures:
Financial assets measured at amortized cost
Other assets

Total

Off the Consolldated Statement of Financial Position Items
Letters of guarantee

Letters of credit

Letters of acceptance

Unuttized facility cellings

Total

The types of guarantees against the loans and credit facilities are as follows:

Real estate mortgages.

Mortgage of financlal instruments such as shares.
Bank guarantees.

Cash collaterals.

Governmental guarantee.

- 45 -

December 31,

2016

2015

pla}

146,162,020
185,788,643

10,037,793

387,605,663

259,320,166

626,732,518

151,961,357

21,616,898

754,809,955

D

244,835,493
151,996,498

14,647,510

326,449,228

179,207,490

533,931,967

166,033,240

21,701,176

601,857,948

10,566,183 10,210,192
2,554,601,196 2,250,870,742

215,329,221

201,539,012

91,392,693 39,774,771
55,150,734 55,077,407
139,061,512 138,977,083
500,934,160 435,368,273
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The Bank's management monitors the market value of those guarantees periodically. In case the value of the
guarantee declines, the Bank requests additional guarantees to cover the shortage. Moreover, the Bank evaluates

the guarantees against non-performing credit facilities periodically.

Scheduled Debts:
These are the debts that have been previously classified as non-performing credit facilities but taken out therefrom
according to proper scheduling, These debts have been classified as watch list and amaunted to JD 1,615,407 for the

year 2016 (D 11,317,083 for the year 2015).

Restructured Debts:
Restructuring means rearranging credit facilities through adjusting the installments, prolonging the credit facilitles,
postponing some instaliments, or extending the grace period, etc. These debts have been classified as watch list debts,

and amounted to 1D 22,278,472 for the year 2016 (1D 12,947,760 for the year 2015).
Bonds, Bills, Debentures and Mutual Funds:
The foliowing table llustrates the classification of bonds, bills, debentures and mutual funds according to external

rating institutions:

As of December 31, 2016

Within Financial

Assets at Fair Within Financial
Value through Assets
Comprehensive Measured at
Rating Grade Rating Institution Income Amortized Cost Total
o o D
AA3 MOODYS - 708,198 708,198
Unclassified - 4,867,994 57,545,000 62,412,994
Governmental Governmental & Government
guaranteed bonds : 696,556,757 696,556,757
Total 4,867,994 754,809,955 759,677,949
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38 b. Market Risk

Market risk is the potential loss that may arise from the changes in market
prices, such as the change in interest rates, foreign currency exchange
rates, equity instrument prices, and consequently, the change in the fair
value of the cash flows for the financial instruments that are on-and off-
consolidated statement of financial position.

Within the Bank’s investment policy approved by the Board of Directors,
acceptable risks are set and monitored monthly by the Assets and
Liabilities Committee, which provides guidance and recommendations
thereon. Moreover, the available systems calculate the effect of the
fluctuations in interest rates, exchange rates, and share prices.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk results from the potential change in interest rates, and
consequently, the potential impact on the fair value of the financial
instruments. The Bank Is exposed to the risk of interest rates due to a
mismatch or a gap in the amounts of assets and liabilities according to the
various time limits or review of interest rates in a certain period.
Moreover, the Bank manages these risks through reviewing the interest
rates on assets and liabilities based on the risk management’s strategy.

The Bank is exposed to interest rate risks as a result of the timing gaps of
re-pricing assets and liabilities. These gaps are periodically monitored by
the Assets and Liabilities Committee through reviewing the report to
identify interest rate risks in the short-and long-terms and take the proper
decisions to restrict these risks in light of the expectations of the interest
rate’s trend through using all or some of the following methods:

Repricing deposits and/or loans.

Changing the maturities and size of the assets and liabilities sensitive to
interest rates,

Buying or selling financial investments.

Using financial derivatives for interest rate hedging purposes.

T



Sensitivity analysis:
Interest Rate Risk:

_December 31, 2016
Change
(Increase) in Interest Income
Sensitivity (Gain and Owners' Equity
Currency Interest Rate Loss) Sensitivity
% D D
US Dollar 1
1,264,578 14,902
Euro 1
87,688 -
GBP 1
(25,514) N
Yen 1
{38,173) i
Other currencies 1
(26,179) N
Change

(Decrease) in

Interest Income
Sensitivity (Gain and

Owners' Equity

Currency Interest Rate Loss) Sensitivity
% D D
uUs Dollar 1
(1,264,578) (14,902)
Euro 1 -
(B7,688)
GBP
1 25,514 -
Yen 1
38,173 -
Other currencies
1 26,179 -
December 1
Change Interest Income
(Increase) in Sensitivity (Gain Owners' Equity
Currency Interest Rate and Lgss) Sensitivity
% D D
uUs Dollar 1
2,158,185 15,889
Euro 1
{13,254) 5
GBP
1 9,082 -
Yen
1 (7,291) -
Other currencies
. (20,013) 9
Change Interest Income

(Increase) in

Sensitivity (Gain

Owners' Equity

Currency Interest Rate and Loss) Sensitivity
% D D
US Dollar
1 (2,158,185) (15,889)
Euro 1
13,254 (5)
GBP 1
{9,082) -
Yen 1
7,291 N
Other currencies 1
20,013 (9)
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Currencies risk:

The following table illustrates the currencies to which the Bank is exposed and the
potential and reasonable change Iin their rates against the Jordanian Dinar and
the reiated impact on the profit and loss statements. The currencies positions are

monitored daily to ensure that they are within the determine

the related reports are submitted to the management.

December 31, 2016

d limits. Moreover,

Change in Effect on
Foreign Currency Effect on Profit & Shareholders’
Currency Exchange Rate Loss Equity
% D D
US Doilar - - -
Euro 5 (4,520) -
GBP 5 1,248 -
Yen 5 (4,537) -
Other currencies 5 1,490 -
December 31, 2015
Change in Effect on
Foreign Currency Effect on Profit & Shareholders’
Currency Exchange Rate Loss Equity
% D D
Us Dollar o = -
Euro 5 (22,565) -
GBP 5 18,948 -
Yen 5 51 -
Other currencies 5 15,829 -

= Foreign Currencies Risks
Within its approved investment policy, the Bank’s Board of Directors sets up
limits for the positions of all currencies at the Bank. These positions are
monitored daily through the Treasury and Investment Department and are
submitted to the executive management to ensure that the currencies
positions are within the approved limits.

Moreover, the Bank follows the hedging policy to mitigate the risks of
foreign currencies by using financial derivatives.
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Risks of Changes in Shares Prices:

This represents the risk resulting from the decline in the fair value of the
investment portfolio of the shares due to the changes in the value of the shares’
indicators and the change in the value of shares individually.

December 31, 2016

Impact on Impact on
Change in Profit and Owners'
Indicator Indicator Loss Equity
% JD D
Amman Stock Exchange 5 23,299 596,761
December 31, 2015
Impact on Impact on
Change in Profit and Owners'
Indicator Indicator Loss Equity
% D D
Amman Stock Exchange 5 48,419 615,177

- Shares’ Price Risk
The Board of Directors adopts a specific policy in diversifying investments of
the shares based on geographic and sectorial distribution at predetermined
percentages that are monitored daily. According to this policy, it is
recommended to invest in listed shares of well-reputed international
markets that have a high liquidity rate to face any risks that might arise
therefrom.
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38 c.Liquidity Risks

Liquidity risk represents the Bank’s inability to make available the necessary
funding to fulfill its obligations on their maturities. To protect the Bank
against these risks, management diversifies funding sources, manages
assets and liabilities, matches their maturities, and maintains an adequate
balance of cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities.

The Bank's liquidity management policy aims to enhance the procurability of
liquidity at the lowest costs possible. Through managing liquidity, the Bank
seeks to maintain reliable and stable funding sources at a reasonable cost
rate.

Management, measurement, and control of liquidity are conducted based on
normal and emergency conditions. This includes analysis of the maturity
dates of assets and various financial ratios.

Fund Sources:
The Bank diversifies its funding sources to achieve financial flexibility and to
lower funding costs.

Moreover, the Bank has a large customer base comprising of individuals,
establishments, and corporations. Due to its financial strength, the Bank has
an ability to access cash markets, which represent an additional available
funding source,

The existence of the Bank in most of the cities of the Hashemite Kingdom of
Jordan (55 branches) in addition to its branches in Palestine and Cyprus,
enables the Bank to diversify its funding sources and not to rely on one
geographical area as a source of funding.

In order to comply with the instructions of the regulatory authorities, the
Bank maintains part of its customers' deposits at the central banks as a
restricted cash reserve that cannot be utilized except under specified
regulations, In addition, the liquidity ratios are reserved at levels higher
than the minimum imposed by the central banks in the countries in which
the Bank operates.

The contractual maturity dates of the assets and liabilities in the schedule
have been determined based on the remaining period from the date of the
consolidated statement of financial position until the contractual maturity
date regardless of the actual maturities reflected by historical events
relating to maintaining deposits and the availability of liquidity.
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More than

One Year up
December 31, 20156 Up to One Year to 5 Years Total
D D D
Letters of credit and acceptances 254,024,264 1,681,961 255,706,225
Unutilized credit facilities 139,061,512 - 139,061,512
Letters of guarantee 209,710,446 5,618,775 215,329,221
Total 602,796,222 7,300,736 610,096,958
More than
One Year up
December 31, 2015 Up to One Year to 5 Years Total
b D D
Letters of credit and acceptances 206,028,680 2,454,063 208,482,743
Unutilized credit facilities 134,292,793 4,684,290 138,977,083
Letters of guarantee 178,184,638 23,354,374 201,539,012
Total 518,506,111 30,492,727 548,998,838

39. Sectors Analysis
a. _ Information on _the Bank's Activity Sectors

For managerial purposes, the Bank is organized into six major activity
sectors as well as financial brokerage and consultation services provided by
Al-Ahli Financial Brokerage Company.

Accounts of individuals: includes following up on individual customers’
deposits, granting them loans, debts, credit cards, and other services.

Accounts of small & medium companies: includes following up on deposits
and credit facilities granted to the clients of this sector, who are classified
according to their deposits and facilities volume in accordance with the
Bank’s established policies and procedures, which conform to the regulatory
authorities instructions.

Accounts of corporations: includes following up on deposits and credit
facilities granted to the clients of this sector, who are classified according to
their deposits and facilities volume in accordance with the Bank’'s
established policies and procedures, which conform to the regulatory
authorities Instructions.

Treasury: includes providing dealing, treasury, fund management services,
and long-term investments measured at amortized cost and held until the
collection of contractual cash flows.

Investment and foreign currency management: includes the Bank’s local and
foreign investments recorded at fair value in addition to foreign currency
trading services,

Other: includes all accounts not listed in the above-mentioned sectors. For
example, shareholders’ equity, investments in associates, property and
equipment, and head office and its related supporting managements.
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40. Capital Management
a. Description of what is considered as paid-up capital

Capital is categorized into paid-up capital, economic capital, and regulatory
capital whereby regulatory capital is defined, according to the Banks Law, as
the total value of the items determined by the Central Bank for control
purposes to meet the requirements of the capital adequacy ratio as per the
Central Bank of Jordan instructions. Furthermore, capital consists of two
parts:  Primary Capital (Tier 1) made up of paid-up capital, declared
reserves (including statutory reserve, voluntary reserve, share premium,
and treasury share premium), and retained earnings, excluding restricted
and minority interest amounts net of loss for the period, costs of the
acquisition of treasury stock, decrease in the provisions required from the
Bank, and goodwill; and Support capital (Tier 2) consisting of the
undeclared reserves, exchange rate differences, general banking risks
reserve, instruments with debt-equity shared characteristics, support debts
and 45% of the cumulative change in fair value, if positive, and 100%, if
negative. A third part of capital (Tier 3) might be formed in case the capital
adequacy ratio goes below 12% due to factoring capital adequacy ratio into
market risks. Moreover, investments in subsidiary banks and financial
institutions are deducted (if their financial statements are not consolidated),
and investments in the capitals of banks and financial institutions are
deducted as well.

b. Regulatory party’s requirements concerning capital and the manner in which
they are met
Instructions of the Central Bank of Jordan require that paid-up capital be

not iess than JD 100 million and equity-to-assets ratio be not less than 6%.
Moreover, the Central Bank of Jordan instructions require that the ratio of
regulatory capital to assets weighted by risks and market's risks {capital
adequacy ratio) be not less than 12%, which is considered by the Bank.

Additionally, the Bank complies with Article {(62) of the Banks Law, which
requires the Bank to appropriate 10% of its net profits in the Kingdom and
continue to do so until the reserve equals the Bank’s paid-up capital. This
meets the requirements of the statutory reserve prescribed by the
Companies Law.

The Bank complies with Article (41) of the Banks Law, which requires
adherence to the limits set by the Central Bank of Jordan relating to the
following:

1. The percentage of risks relating to its assets and assets weighted by
risks, elements of capital, reserves, and contra accounts.

2. Ratio of total loans to regulatory capital the Bank is allowed to grant to
one person, his allies, or to related stakeholders.

3. Ratio of total loans granted to the major ten customers of the Bank to
total loans extended by the Bank.

c. Method of achieving capital management objectives

Capital management includes the optimal employment of funds to achieve
the highest return on capital possible while maintaining the minimum
required by laws and regulations. The Bank adopts a policy of exerting
efforts to reduce the cost of funds as much as possible through finding low-
cost funds, increasing the customer’s base, and optimally employing these
funds in acceptable risk activities to achieve the highest return possible on
capital.
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d. Adequacy of Capital

On October 31, 2016, the Central Bank of Jordan issued instructions on capital adequacy

according to Base! III Standards and cancelled Basel II instructions.

The Bank manages capital in a manner that ensures continuity of its operations while maximizing
the return on equity to shareholders. The composition of regulatory capital, as defined by Basel

Committee, is as follows:

December 31,

2016

(In thousand JD)

Primary Capital for Ordinary Shareholders CET 1 287,676
Regulatory adjustments (deductions from the primary capital for ordinary

shareholders' equity CET 1) (41,217)
Additional capital

Supplementary capital

14,989
Total Regulatory Capital 261 448
Total Risk-Weighted Assets 1,961,446
Primary Capital Adequacy Ratio (CET 1) (%) 12,57
Regulatory Capital Adequacy Ratio (%) 13.33

* Primary capital is calculated net of investments in banks and subsidiary financial institutions,

as their financial statements were not consolidated.
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The following is the capital adequacy ratio which as has been calculated according to the instructions

of Basel II as of December 31, 2015 based on Basel Committee resolutions.

December 31,
2015

(In thousand JD)

Primary capital items

Subscribed and paid-up capital

Statutory reserve

Vaoluntary reserve

Other reserves

Retained earnings

Less:

Deferred provisions under the Central Bank's approval
Deferred tax assets and other intangible assets

Investment in insurance companies and unconsolidated financial institutions

175,000
51,197
33,486

2,294
21,145

(2,699)
(7,566)
(1,603)

Total Primary Capital

271,254

Supplementary Capital Items:

General banking risks reserve

Fair value reserve

Less:

Investments in Insurance companies and unconsolidated

financial institutions

11,693
541

13
13

Total Supplementary Capital

10,631

Total Regulatory Capital

281,885

Total Risk-Weighted Assets

1,730,762

Regulatory Capital Adequacy Ratio (%)
Primary Capital Adequacy Ratio (%) *

* Primary capital is calculated net of investments in banks and subsidiary financial institutions as

their financial statements were not consolidated.
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41. Asgets snd Habilitics Maturity Analysis;

The following table illustrates the analysis of assets and Nabflities according to the expected period of their

recoverabliity or settlement:

Lecember 31, 2016

Assets;

Cash and balances at central banks
Balances at banks and financlal Institutions

Deposits at banks and finandial Institutions

Financinl assats at falr valye through profit or loss
Direct credit facllitles - net
Financial assets at fair valye through other comprehensive income
Financial assets measured at amartized cost
Iavestments In associates and unconsolidated subsidlary compantes
Properties, equipment and projects under construction - net
Intangible assets - net
Dther assets
Deferred tax assets

Total Assets

Liabilities:
Banks and financial institutions deposits
Customers deposits
Cash margins
Bormowed funds
Various provisions
Provision for Income tax
Deferred tax liabilities
Other fiabllities
Total Liabilities
Nat

Lecember 31, 2015

Assets:

Cash and balances at central banks
Balances at banks and financial Institutions

Deposits at banks and financtal Institutions
Financlal assets at fair value through profit or loss
Direct credit facilities - net
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
Financlal assets measured at amortized cost
Investments In associates and unconsalidated subsidiary companies
Properties, equipment and projects under construction - net
Intangible assets - net
QOther assats
Deferred tax assets
Total Assats

Liabilities:
Banks and financial institutlons deposits
Customers deposits
Cash margins
Borrowed funds
Varlous provisions
Pravision for income tax
Deferred tax labllities
Other liabilities
Total Liabilities
Net
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Up to Mare than
One Year One Year Total
o Pl o
193,764,651 8,224,400 201,989,051
185,788,641 185,788,643
10,037,793 10,037,793
968,373 968,373
503,723,237 943,513,365 1,447,236,602
29,011,930 - 29,011,930
288,171,855 466,538,100 754,809,955
5,106,980 5,106,980
- 46,831,590 46,831,590
21,141,035 21,141,035
- 106,377,371 106,377,371
- 6,219,227 6,219,227
li211‘466|482 li604‘052‘068 2|815i518i550
57,353,655 - 57,353,655
1,837,642,736 225,652,023 2.067,294,759
74,855,362 181,027,769 255,883,131
18,840,478 69,679,555 88,520,033
3,392,889 - 3,392,889
926,721 925,721
- 1,002,584 1,002,584
= 38,479,374 38,479,374
1|993|0!li841 519|841|305 2‘512i853|245
‘781|545|3591 1|°B4|21°i753 302|665i404
Up to Mora than
One Year One Year Total
o Jo I
280,387,087 7,444,500 297,831,587
151,996,498 - 151,996,498
14,647,510 14,647,510
465,972 - 465,972
470,964,533 756,358,568 1,227,323,101
27,841,330 - 27,841,330
175,484,129 426,373,813 601,857,948
- 5,219,798 5,219,798
59,745,149 59,745,149
1,428,562 1,428,562
- 110,133,567 110,133,567
- 6,137,976 6,137,976
1‘121i737|059 137284 1,939 2i494‘GZBIQBB
30,631,530 - 30,631,530
1,548,999,460 233,223,265 1,782,222,725
102,622,500 176,574,817 279,197,317
19,274,121 26,290,443 45,564,569
3,663,206 3,663,206
7,557,618 7,557,618
- 1,058,399 1,058,399
- 31,214,853 31,214,853
1,712,748,435 468@61‘777 zlwxluu‘zu
——iS20.981,376) ___ 304980162 313518785



December 31,

2016 2015
D D
Accounts managed on behaif of customers* 19,954,122 10,178,656

* This Item represents accounts with no guaranteed capital managed on behalf of customers. These accounts
do not appear within the assets and liabilities of the Bank in the consolidated statement of financial

position.

i L i

a. Commitments and contingent liabilities

The details of this item are as follows:

December 31,

2016 2015
D D
Letters of credit:
dit - in
Letters of credit - outgoing 91,392,693 39,774,771
L -
etters of credit-incoming 109,162,798 113,630,565
A ¢
ceeptances 55,150,734 55,077,407
Letters of guarantee:
-p ts
Gl 110,086,167 109,491,621
- Perfi anc d
erformance bonds 69,249,069 66,463,924
- Oth
= 35,993,985 25,583,467
il ect credit facili
Unutilized direct credit facilities 139,061,512 138,977,083
Total 610,096,958 548,998,838
L

The lawsuits filed against the Bank amounted to JD 5,606,615 as of December 31, 2016 (JD 11,842,721 as of
December 31, 2015). In the opinion of the Bank's management and its legal advisors, no liabilities exceeding

the provision of JD 216,160 as of December 31, 2016 are expected to arise.
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46.a.New and_revised IFRSs lied with no material effect on th
financial statements:
The following new and revised IFRSs, which became effective for annual
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016, have been adopted in these
financial statements. The application of these revised IFRSs has not had any
material impact on the amounts reported for the current and prior years but
may affect the accounting for future transactions or arrangements.

¢ IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts

* Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements relating to
Disclosure initiative

* Amendments to IFRS 11 Joint arrangements relating to accounting for
acquisitions of interests in joint operations

* Amendments to IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment and IAS 38
Intangible Assets relating to clarification of acceptable methods of
depreciation and amortization

* Amendments to IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment and IAS 41
Agriculture: Bearer Plants

* Amendments to IAS 27 Separate Financial Statements relating to
accounting investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates to
be optionally accounted for using the equity method in separate financial
statements

* Amendments to IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements, IFRS 12
Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities and IAS 28 Investment in
Associates and Joint Ventures relating to applying the consolidation
exception for investment entities

e Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2012 - 2014 Cycle covering amendments
to IFRS 5, IFRS 7, IAS 19 and IAS 34

46. b. New and revised IFRSs in issue but not vet effectiv and not earl

adopted
The Company has not yet applied the following new and revised IFRSs that

have been issued but are not yet effective:

Effective for annual periods
New and revised IFRSs beginning on or after

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards The amendments to IFRS 1 and IAS
2014 - 2016 Cycle amending IFRS 1, IFRS 12 28 are effective for annual periods
and IAS 28 beginning on or after January 1,

2018, the amendment to IFRS 12 for
annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2017

Amendments to IAS 12 Income Taxes January 1, 2017
relating to the recognition of deferred tax
assets for unrealized losses
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New and revised IFRSs

Amendments to IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows to provide disclosures
that enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in
liabilities arising from financing activities.

IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration
The interpretation addresses foreign currency transactions or parts of
transactions where:

¢ there is consideration that is denominated or priced in a foreign
currency;

» the entity recognises a prepayment asset or a deferred income
liability in respect of that consideration, in advance of the
recognition of the related asset, expense or income; and

e the prepayment asset or deferred income liability is non-
monetary.

Amendments to IFRS 2 Share Based Payment regarding classification
and measurement of share based payment transactions

Amendments to IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts: Relating to the different
effective dates of IFRS 9 and the forthcoming new insurance contracts
standard.

Amendments to IAS 40 Investment Property: Amends paragraph 57 to
state that an entity shall transfer a property to, or from, investment
property when, and only when, there is evidence of a change in use, A
change of use occurs if property meets, or ceases to meet, the
definition of investment property. A change in management’s
intentions for the use of a property by itself does not constitute
evidence of a change in use. The paragraph has been amended to
state that the list of examples therein is non-exhaustive.

Amendments to IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures relating to
disclosures about the initial application of IFRS 9

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures relating to the additional
hedge accounting disclosures (and consequential amendments)
resulting from the introduction of the hedge accounting chapter in
IFRS 9.

BoN 5

Effective for
annual periods
beginning on
or after

January 1, 2017

January 1, 2018

January 1, 2018

January 1, 2018

January 1, 2018

When IFRS 9 is
first applied

When IFRS 9 is
first applied



New and revised IFRSs

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (revised versions in 2009, 2010, 2013
and 2014)

IFRS 9 issued in November 2009 introduced new requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial assets. IFRS 9 was
subsequently amended in October 2010 to include requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial liabilities and for
derecognition, and in November 2013 to include the new
requirements for general hedge accounting. Another revised version
of IFRS 9 was issued in July 2014 mainly to include a) impairment
requirements for financial assets and b) limited amendments to the
classification and measurement requirements by introducing a ‘fair
value through other comprehensive income’ (FVTOCI) measurement
category for certain simple debt instruments,

A finalized version of IFRS 9 which contains accounting requirements
for financial instruments, replacing IAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement. The standard contains requirements
in the following areas:

« Classification and measurement: Financial assets are
classified by reference to the business model within which they
are held and their contractual cash flow characteristics. The 2014
version of IFRS 9 introduces a 'fair value through other
comprehensive income' category for certain debt instruments.
Financial liabilities are classified in a similar manner to under IAS
39, however there are differences in the requirements applying to
the measurement of an entity's own credit risk.

+ Impairment: The 2014 version of IFRS 9 introduces an
'expected credit loss' model for the measurement of the
impairment of financial assets, so it is no longer necessary for a
credit event to have occurred before a credit loss is recognised

+ Hedge accounting: Introduces a new hedge accounting model
that is designed to be more closely aligned with how entities
undertake risk management activities when hedging financial and
non-financial risk exposures.

« Derecognition: The requirements for the derecognition of
financial assets and liabilities are carried forward from IAS 39.

Effective for
annual periods
beginning on
or after

January 1, 2018

Amendments to IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers to January 1, 2018

clarify three aspects of the standard (identifying performance
obligations, principal versus agent considerations, and licensing) and
to provide some transition relief for modified contracts and completed

contracts.
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New and revised IFRSs

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

In May 2014, IFRS 15 was issued which established a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for revenue
arising from contracts with customers. IFRS 15 will supersede the
current revenue recognition guidance including IAS 18 Revenue, IAS
11 Construction Contracts and the related interpretations when it
becomes effective.

The core principle of IFRS 15 is that an entity should recognize
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
Specifically, the standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue
recognition:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer.

Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract.
Step 3: Determine the transaction price.

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract,

- Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a
performance obligation.

Under IFRS 15, an entity recognises when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when 'control’ of the goods or services
underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred to the
customer. Far more prescriptive guidance has been added in IFRS 15
to deal with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures
are required by IFRS 15.

IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16 specifies how an IFRS reporter will recognise, measure,
present and disclose leases, The standard provides a single lessee
accounting model, requiring lessees to recognise assets and liabilities
for all leases unless the lease term is 12 months or less or the
underlying asset has a low value. Lessors continue to classify leases
as operating or finance, with IFRS 16's approach to lessor accounting
substantially unchanged from its predecessor, IAS 17.

Amendments to IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and IAS
28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures (2011) relating to
the treatment of the sale or contribution of assets from and investor
to its associate or joint venture.

January 1, 2018

January 1, 2019

Effective date
deferred
indefinitely

Management anticipates that these new standards, interpretations and
amendments will be adopted in the Banks's financia! statements as and when
they are applicable and adoption of these new standards, interpretations and
amendments, except for IFRS 9, IFRS 15 and IFRS 16, may have no material
impact on the financial statements of the Bank in the period of initial application.
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Management anticipates that IFRS 15 and IFRS 9 will be adopted in the Bank’s
consolidated financial statements for the annual period beginning 1 January 2018
and that IFRS 16 will be adopted in the Bank's consolidated financial statements
for the annual period beginning 1 January 2019.

The application of IFRS 15 and IFRS 9 may have significant impact on amounts
reported and disclosures made in the Bank's consolidated financial statements in
respect of revenue from contracts with customers and the Bank’s consolidated
financial assets and financial liabilities and the application of IFRS 16 may have
significant impact on amounts reported and disclosures made in the Bank's
consolidated financial statements in respect of its leases. However, it's not a
practical to provide a reasonable estimated regarding the claims of Applying the
standard till the Bank make a review regarding this matter.

47. nt Even
According to the decision of the Board of Directors in their meeting No,
(3/2017) held on February 23, 2017, the consolidated financial statements
have been approved and were subject to the approval of the Central Bank of
Jordan. On April 12, 2017, The approval of the Central Bank of Jordan was
received after adjusting the following notes in the consolidated financial
statements:

1- Note (6) Which related to the deposits at banks and financial institutions.
2- Note (18) Which related to the borrowed funds.

3- Note (36) Which related to the related party balances and transactions.
4- Note (40-d) Which related to the adequacy of capital.

- 78 -



	Binder1
	1
	2

	3
	4
	5

